
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
 


      
 


  


 


 
  


  
 
   


  
   


 
   


 


  
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.1 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 8, 2021 


Topic:
Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates. 


Background:
Attached is a listing of the Temporary County Certificates (TCC)  
issued from August 1-31, 2021. TCC’s are issued in order to authorize 
the individual to work while the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing reviews his/her waiver request, emergency permit, initial 
and/or renewal credential application packet. 


Dr. Cecilia A. Massetti, Madera County Superintendent of Schools or an 
assigned designee, approved and signed each certificate. The Board is 
now requested to ratify this action. 


Financial Impact:
None 


Resource: 
Tricia Protzman 
Assistant Superintendent 
Human Resources 


Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board ratify the issuance of Temporary County 
Certificates from August 1-31, 2021. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


     


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


  


MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT of SCHOOLS 


TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES Issued  8/1/21 - 8/31/21 


Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing Date Issued Application 
District Type 


Berry Jasmine STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Bese Kaleah PIP 8/9/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Campos Adam PIP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Chowchilla 8/31/2021 New 
Union HSD 


Carrillo Elisandra STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Caudillo Hector Emergency CLAD Permit 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Culbertson Megan STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 MCSOS 8/31/2021 New 


DeLeon Catherine Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/1/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Diaz Cecilia STSP 8/9/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Errecart Ariq STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Felix Joe STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Gamch Aurelia STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Gibbon Stefanie Pupil Personnel Services Credential 8/9/21-9/1/22 Bass Lake SD 8/31/2021 New 


Gonzalez Micaela STSP 8/2/21-9/1/22 MCSOS 8/31/2021 New 


Guadalupe Daniel STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Hamblen Stephanie Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/1/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


  


 


 


  


Last Name 


Hernandez 


First Name 


Alexander 


Credential Applied For 


STSP 


Valid Dates of TCC 


8/1/21-9/1/22 


Employing 
District 


Madera USD 


Date Issued 


8/31/2021 


Application 
Type 


New 


Hill Robert EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 Renewal 


Jizmejian Kolby Preliminary Single Subject Credential 8/11/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Kuhn 


LaMattina 


Derick 


Bresha 


PIP 


PIP 


8/1/21-9/1/22 


8/1/21-9/1/22 


Golden Valley 
USD 


Madera USD 


8/31/2021 


8/31/2021 


New 


New 


Lienau Anna STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Lincoln Mariah Multiple Subject Credential 8/9/21-9/1/22 Bass Lake SD 8/31/2021 New 


Markley 


McKown 


McLaughlin 


Bailey 


Patricia 


Kourtni 


Speech-Language Pathology Services 
Credential 


Special Education Limited Assignment 
Permit 


STSP 


8/9/21-9/1/22 


8/1/21-9/1/22 


7/29/21-8/1/22 


Bass Lake SD 


Chowchilla 
Elementary SD 


Bass Lake SD 


8/31/2021 


8/31/2021 


8/31/2021 


New 


New 


New 


Medina Monica EM 30-Day Substitue Permit 7/1/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Moreno Cynthia PIP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Nickels Sarah Preliminary Single Subject Credential 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Olson Kirstin STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Oneill Patricia STSP 7/29/21-8/1/22 Bass Lake SD 8/31/2021 New 


Pelayo Stephanie EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 Renewal 







 


   


  


  


 
 


  


  


   


 


 


 


Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing 
District 


Date Issued Application 
Type 


Ponce Maria Preliminary School Nurse Services 
Credential 


8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Preston Taylor PIP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Richards Alexandria EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 Renewal 


Riddle Brian Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/1/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Riedel Allen Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/9/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Rios Michael PIP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Romo Jennifer Emergency 30-Day Substitute Permit 9/1/21-10/1/22 Chowchilla 8/31/2021 New 
Elementary SD 


Ruiz Steven PIP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Scott Annie Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/1/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Sedehi Misty Preliminary Administrative Credential 7/16/21-8/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 


Shamoon Valerie Single Subject Credential- 2 Year Extension 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 Renewal 


Springer Donna PIP 8/9/21-9/1/22 Bass Lake SD 8/31/2021 New 


Tobin Samantha Preliminary School Nurse Services 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 
Credential 


Walker Courtney Multiple Subject District Intern 9/1/21-10/1/22 Chawanakee 8/31/2021 New 
USD 


Winston Darin STSP 8/1/21-9/1/22 Madera USD 8/31/2021 New 





		Agenda Item 8.1 Board of Education Action Item September 8, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT of SCHOOLS TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES Issued 8/1/21 -8/31/21






 Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 8.2 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment. 
 
Background:  
MCSOS staff members have completed a review of other equipment not 
in use and have determined that these items cannot be used in 
alternative placements.  The equipment is shown on the attached list.  
Once declared obsolete, the items will be removed from our Fixed Asset 
Inventory and discarded. 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the list of equipment to be declared 
obsolete. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Description Make Model S/N
Asset 
Tag Obsolete


Non-
operational


Desktop Dell Optiplex 745 81H7BD1 22537 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 745 41H7BD1 22546 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 745 9KQXXC1 22329 X
Laptop Dell Latitude E5540 FX1WL12 24931 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 790 D6838V1 24346 X
Desktop Dell Optiplex 791 FYZY7V1 24351 X
Chromebook HP Chromebook 14 5CD5121D5K 25064 X


Other Items


Description Make Model S/N
Asset 


Tag Obsolete
Non-


operational
Monitor Dell E176FPc CN-0MC040-64180-64D-5Q6K 21719A X
Monitor Dell E176FPc CN-0MC040-64180-64D-531K 21653A X
Assistive Tech Device Euro Speech NA NA 3163 X
Camedia Digital Camera Olympus D-535 NA 21162 X
Doctor's - type Scale Unknown Unknown Gould WO 10037 8467 X
Laptop (Low Incidence) Dell Latitude SPS Magdaleno's Office 00045-431-512-843 20251 X
Scanner/Printer (Low Incidence) HP SPS Magdaleno's Office SG29S11B73 20241 X
Closed Caption Decoder (L.I.) Telecaption 4000 SPS Magdaleno's Office 714778 6634 X
Go Talk GT-04 WO 10010 X
Go Talk WO 10010 X
Spinning Communicator 2043 011352959 WO 10010 X
Talking Photo Album 011352900 WO 10010 X
Talking Photo Album 011352901 WO 10010 X
Talking Photo Album 011352902 WO 10010 X
Phrase Maker 2509 0113529656 WO 10010 22996 X
Portable Communicator 7079 011352955 WO 10010 X
Pocket Go Talk T615 0113520140 WO 10010 X
Pocket Go Talk 22221 011352941 WO 10010 X
Voice Pod 011352896 WO 10100 X
Ablenet Bookworm TB 44/050086-0 011352769 WO 10100 X
Motion Pad 011352887 WO 10100 X
Talktrac Plus WO 10010 21438 X


Obsolete Items List -  For September 2021 Board
Computers





		Agenda Item 8.2 Board of Education Action Item September 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		Obsolete Items List - For September 2021 Board






Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.3 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021


Topic:
Review of Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases, and Specialized Health 
Care.


Backround: 
Annually the Handbook for Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases, and  
Specialized Health Care is reviewed and updated. There are no changes 
to the policies and procedures. Phone numbers and contacts have been 
checked and updated. Updated pages will be distributed to school sites 
once approved.


Financial Impact:
None


Resource:
Jessica Drake
Executive Director
Student Programs and Services


Recommendation:
Approval of the updates made to the Emergency Care, Infectious 
Diseases, and Specialized Health Care handbook.







 
  


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 
 


Apollo Campus 
 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


 
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Cafeteria    
Location of First Aid Supplies:  MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Site Office, and Nurse’s 
Office 
 
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Apollo Mental Health & Special Education Programs & Your Name 


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4648 


• Address and Easy directions: 28198 Avenue 14, Madera, CA 93638 


• Across from Madera County Independent Academy; near Road 28 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 


• First aid already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 


• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 


• Dani Little, Mental Health Coordinator – Office: 559-662-4647 or Cell: 559-906-9227 


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director – Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Berenda Elementary School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Teacher’s lounge 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS special education classrooms, Nurse’s Office, and 
Cafeteria 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Berenda Elementary & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 674-3325


• Address and Easy directions: 26820 Club Drive, Madera, CA 93638


• Corner of Club Drive and Road 27; Near Madera Golf & Country Club


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:


• Lori Kump, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-871-0566


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Chowchilla High School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Gym, Nurse’s Office, Cafeteria, Poo 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Classroom Room 2, Nurse’s Office, Gym, Pool 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Chowchilla High School & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 665-1331


• Address and Easy directions: 805 Humboldt Avenue, Chowchilla, CA 93610


• Humboldt Avenue and 8th Street, just south of Robertson Blvd.


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-665-8600
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Coarsegold School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Main Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Coarsegold Elementary & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 683-4841


• Address and Easy directions: 45426 Road 415, Coarsegold, CA 93614-9522


• Cross streets are Raymond Rd. and Bohna Ranch Rd.


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413


• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Desmond Middle School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Main Office, Gym 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office, Gym 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Jack G. Desmond Middle & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-1775


• Address and Easy directions: 26490 Martin St., Madera, CA 93638


• Corner of Martin Street and D Street


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Gould Educational Center 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None  
Location of First Aid Supplies: All Classrooms, Nurse’s Office and Kitchen 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Norman M. Gould Educational Center & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4831 or (559) 674-0915


• Address and Easy directions: 117 W. Dunham, Madera, CA 93637


• On W. Dunham just west of 145/Madera Avenue


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Robbie Aledo, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4843 or Cell: 808-217-1918


• Tanya Hill, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4803 or Cell: 559-908-1685


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







 
  


 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 


POST NEAR ALL PHONES 
September 14, 2021 


 
Howard School 


 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 
 


   
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office  
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms and School Nurse’s Office    
   
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Howard Educational Center & Your Name  


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 674-8568 


• Address and Easy directions: 13878 Road 21 ½, Madera, CA 93637 


• On Road 21 ½ off of Avenue 14 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 


• First aide already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
 


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:  


• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







 
  


 


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 
 


Liberty High School 
 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


 
   
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Gym, Nurse’s Office, and Cafeteria  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office 
 
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Liberty High School – Special Education & Your Name 


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 645-3500 


• Address and Easy directions: 12220 Road 36, Madera, CA 93636 


• Corner of Road 36 and Blossom Avenue off of Avenue 12 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 


• First aide already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
 


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







 
  


 


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 
 


Lincoln Community Day School 
 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


 
 
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Nurse’s Office   
Location of First Aid Supplies: In classroom and Nurse’s Office      
 
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Lincoln Community Day School & Your Name 


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 645-3580 


• Address and Easy directions:12150 Road 36, Madera, CA 93636  


• Located at the Educational Options site to the west of Liberty High School 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 


• First aid already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
 


Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 


• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


EARLY START - MCSOS Building 2 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None  
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms, Office, and Nurse’s Office 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Madera County Superintendent of Schools, Building 2, Early Start  & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4845


• Address and Easy directions:1105 South Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Building 2


• Next to Madera County Superintendent of Schools and across from Gill’s Auto Sales


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., front parking lot, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Dolores West, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4842 or 559-760-5547


• Camille Edmunds, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4827 or Cell: 559-240-4535


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







 
  


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 
 


MCSOS Building 2 
 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


 
   
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None    
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classroom    
 
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Madera County Superintendent of Schools Building 2 & Your Name 


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4630 


• Address and Easy directions: 1105 South Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Building 3 


• Next to Madera County Superintendent of Schools and across from Gill’s Auto Sales, 


behind building 2 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., front parking lot, room number) 


• First aid already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
 


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Robbie Aledo, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4843 or Cell: 808-217-1918 


• Tanya Hill, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4803 or Cell: 559-908-1685 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Madera High School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Gym, and Safety Trailer 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office, Gym 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Madera High School & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 675-4444


• Address and Easy directions: 200 South L Street, Madera, CA 93637


• Corner of L Street and 6th Street


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







 
  


EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 
 


Madera South High 
 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


   
Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Safety Office, 
Cafeteria, East & West Gym, Pool, and Training Room  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office  
 
BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 
 


• Madera South High & Your Name 


• Nature of Emergency 


• School Telephone Number: (559) 675-4450 


• Address and Easy directions: 705 W. Pecan Ave., Madera, CA 9363 


• On Pecan Ave./Avenue 13, between Watt St. and Raymond Thomas St. 


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C) 


• First aid already given? 


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 
 


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 
 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:  


• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 


• Scott Sweazy, Program Director – Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Millview School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Nurse’s Office  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Break Room, and Staff Room


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Millview Educational Center & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 661-3558 or (559) 674-8509


• Address and Easy directions: 1609 Clinton, Madera, CA 93638


• Cross street is Tozer St.; Next to the Madera Sunrise Rotary Sports Complex


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:


• Lori Kump, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-871-0566


• Camille Edmunds, Program Director – Office: 559-662-4827 or Cell: 559-240-4535


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Nishimoto School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse Office 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Nishimoto Elementary & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-8110


• Address and Easy directions: 26460 Martin St., Madera, CA 93638


• Corner of Martin Street and D Street


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Kellsey Hampton, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell:


• Lori Kump, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-871-0566


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Parkwood School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Office  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurses Office  


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Parkwood Elementary School & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 673-2500


• Address and Easy directions:1150 E. Pecan Ave, Madera, CA 93637


• On E. Pecan Ave. just east of 145/Madera Ave.


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413


• Lori Kump, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-871-0566


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None  
Location of First Aid Supplies: Staff Break Room and Classrooms 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Pioneer Technical Center & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-1600


• Address and Easy directions: 28261 Avenue 14, Madera, CA 93638


• Located across from Madera County Independent Academy; near Road 28


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aid already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413


• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097


• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 


September 14, 2021 


Yosemite High School 


EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION 
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 


Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office  
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, School Main Office, 
Gym, and Pool 


BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 


• Yosemite High School & Your Name


• Nature of Emergency


• School Telephone Number: (559) 683-4667


• Address and Easy directions:  50200 Road 427, Oakhurst, CA 93644


• Between Woodsong Way and Alema Way - near the football stadium


• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number)


• First aide already given?


• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.)


Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 


• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413


• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044


• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222


• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1


• Non-Emergency: Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-658-2555


• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555


• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829


• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989


• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893







 
  


 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Student Programs and Services 


Career Technical & Administrative Education Services  


ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS 
2021-2021 


 
Fred Cogan, Executive Director, Career Technical and alternative Education Services (CAES) 
Office Phone: 559-662-6294 
Assigned Sites/Programs: CAES all sites 
 
Jessica Drake, Executive Director  
Office Phone: 559-662-4669 
Cell Phone: 559-363-3337 
Assigned Sites/Programs: All sites/programs 
 
Camille Edmunds, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4827 
Cell Phone: 559-240-4535 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Early Start, Millview Preschool 
 
Jason Peterson, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4611 
Cell Phone: 559-917-5446 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Apollo, Howard, Madera South High 
 
Lori Kump, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4677 
Cell Phone: 559-871-0566 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Berenda, Millview, Nishimoto, Parkwood  
 
Marisa Etheridge, SELPA Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4673 
Cell Phone: 559-681-8303 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Itinerants Programs, Occupational Therapy 
 
Scott Sweazy, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4683 
Cell Phone: 559-213-9450 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Desmond, Madera High, Madera South High, Apollo Adult Transition Program, Liberty High Adult 
Transition Program, Chowchilla Union High School 
 
Tanya Hill, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4803 
Cell Phone: 559-908-1685 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Gould Educational Center, MCSOS Building 2 (room 13) 
 
Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4685 
Cell Phone: 559-260-3044 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Coarsegold, CAES Special Education, Yosemite High, Lincoln Community Day School 
 
 







Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Student Programs and Services 


SCHOOL NURSE DIRECTORY 
2021-2022 


Kellsey Hampton 
Office: Early Start – MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone: 559-662-4841 
Cell Phone:  
E-Mail:


Dolores West 
Office: Early Start – MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone: 559 662-4842 
Cell Phone: 559-917-7701 
E-Mail: dwest@mcsos.org


Robbie Aledo 
Office: Gould Educational Center 
Office Phone: 559-662-4843 
Cell Phone: 517-6746 
E-Mail: raledo@mcsos.org


Holly Cambra 
Office: MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone: 559-662-4823 
Cell Phone: 559-706-2413 
E-Mail: hcambra@mcsos.org



mailto:dwest@mcsos.org

mailto:raledo@mcsos.org



		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES



		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Berenda Elementary School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Chowchilla High School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Coarsegold School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Desmond Middle School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Gould Educational Center





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Howard School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Liberty High School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Lincoln Community Day School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		EARLY START - MCSOS Building 2





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		MCSOS Building 2





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Madera High School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Madera South High





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES



		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Nishimoto School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Parkwood School





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Pioneer Technical Center (PTC)





		EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

		POST NEAR ALL PHONES

		Yosemite High School





		Madera County Superintendent of Schools

		Student Programs and Services

		Career Technical & Administrative Education Services

		ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS



		Madera County Superintendent of Schools

		SCHOOL NURSE DIRECTORY



		COVERSHEET EMERGENCY CARE - ADA.pdf

		Agenda Item 5.2

		Board of Education Informational Item

		April 14, 2020

		Topic:

		Backround:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		5.2 Williams Form 04.14.20.PDF

		Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

		04.09.19 Williams Cover Sheet Scrubbed.pdf

		Agenda Item 5.2

		Board of Education Informational Item

		April 9, 2019

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:





		5.2 Williams Board Cover Sheet.pdf

		Agenda Item 5.2

		Board of Education Informational Item

		April 14, 2020

		Topic:

		Backround:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:


















 
 


      
 


  


  


 
  


  
 


    
  


 
  


 
 


 
 
 


  


 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.4 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021 


Topic:
Fund Budget Revisions 


Background:
Budget Revisions Accomplish the Following: 


1. Attached are the 2020-2021 budget revisions compared to the
2020-2021 Board Approved Revised Budget.  Budget revisions
are being done as staff works through the closeout process.
These are preliminary numbers.  The largest adjustments have
been savings recognized for supplies and services.  The final
Unaudited Actual amounts will be brought back to you at a later
meeting.


Fiscal Impact:
See attached sheets. 


Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business and Administrative Services 


Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the Madera County Superintendent 
of Schools 2020-2021 Budget Revisions. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 
 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 General Fund Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Revenues 
LCFF Sources $6,878,610 $6,232,039 $13,110,649 $6,880,388 $6,342,470 $13,222,858 $1,778 $110,431 $112,209 0.9% 
Federal Revenue $680,000 $9,800,742 $10,480,742 $670,397 $7,734,701 $8,405,098 -$9,603 -$2,066,041 -$2,075,644 -19.8% 
Other State Revenue $81,707 $10,565,314 $10,647,021 $133,093 $10,629,725 $10,762,818 $51,386 $64,411 $115,797 1.1% 
Other Local Revenue $2,855,932 $8,670,464 $11,526,396 $2,975,196 $8,854,449 $11,829,645 $119,264 $183,985 $303,249 2.6% 
Total Revenues $10,496,249 $35,268,559 $45,764,808 $10,659,074 $33,561,345 $44,220,419 $162,825 -$1,707,214 -$1,544,389 -3.4% 


Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $2,057,535 $8,454,835 $10,512,370 $1,969,233 $7,892,205 $9,861,438 -$88,302 -$562,630 -$650,932 -6.2% 
Classified Salaries $3,962,493 $6,770,152 $10,732,645 $3,850,554 $6,311,090 $10,161,644 -$111,939 -$459,062 -$571,001 -5.3% 
Employee Benefits $2,455,002 $7,073,518 $9,528,520 $2,463,143 $5,922,660 $8,385,803 $8,141 -$1,150,858 -$1,142,717 -12.0% 
Books and Supplies $458,361 $1,865,417 $2,323,778 $245,178 $1,189,773 $1,434,951 -$213,183 -$675,644 -$888,827 -38.2% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $1,113,707 $6,200,372 $7,314,079 $509,023 $3,988,899 $4,497,922 -$604,684 -$2,211,473 -$2,816,157 -38.5% 
Capital Outlay $156,916 $336,066 $492,982 $22,276 $367,597 $389,873 -$134,640 $31,531 -$103,109 -20.9% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $1,122,083 $122,156 $1,244,239 $1,122,018 $122,156 $1,244,174 -$65 $0 -$65 0.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs -$2,629,530 $2,387,308 -$242,222 -$2,260,789 $2,043,966 -$216,823 $368,741 -$343,342 $25,399 -10.5% 
Total Expenditures $8,696,567 $33,209,824 $41,906,391 $7,920,636 $27,838,346 $35,758,982 -$775,931 -$5,371,478 -$6,147,409 -14.7% 


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and $1,799,682 $2,058,735 $3,858,417 $2,738,438 $5,722,999 $8,461,437 $938,756 $3,664,264 $4,603,020 119.3% 
Uses 


Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $23,132 $0 $23,132 $23,132 $0 $23,132 100.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $400,000 $55,287 $455,287 $2,358,553 $64 $2,358,617 $1,958,553 -$55,223 $1,903,330 418.1% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions -$275,630 $275,630 $0 -$245,370 $245,370 $0 $30,260 -$30,260 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses -$675,630 $220,343 -$455,287 -$2,580,791 $245,306 -$2,335,485 -$1,905,161 $24,963 -$1,880,198 413.0% 


Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $1,124,052 $2,279,078 $3,403,130 $157,647 $5,968,305 $6,125,952 -$966,405 $3,689,227 $2,722,822 80.0% 


1 







Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 General Fund Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Beginning Balance $8,200,088 $2,997,364 $11,197,452 $8,200,088 $3,019,868 $11,219,956 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $8,200,088 $2,997,364 $11,197,452 $8,200,088 $3,019,868 $11,219,956 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $8,200,088 $2,997,364 $11,197,452 $8,200,088 $3,019,868 $11,219,956 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $9,324,140 $5,276,442 $14,600,582 $8,357,735 $8,988,173 $17,345,908 -$966,405 $3,689,227 $2,722,822 18.6% 


Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $5,276,442 $5,276,442 $0 $8,988,173 $8,988,173 $0 $3,689,227 $3,689,227 69.9% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Assigned 
Other Assignments $1,034,700 $0 $1,034,700 $1,034,700 $0 $1,034,700 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
   LCAP Oversight $6,231 $0 $6,231 $6,231 $0 $6,231 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
   Differentiated Assistance $1,028,469 $0 $1,028,469 $1,028,469 $0 $1,028,469 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Unassigned/Unappropriated 


Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $1,270,850 $0 $1,270,850 $1,270,850 $0 $1,270,850 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $7,018,590 $0 $7,018,590 $6,052,185 $0 $6,052,185 -$966,405 $0 -$966,405 -13.8% 


2 







MCSOS General Fund 
Expense 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$12,000,000 


$10,000,000 


$8,000,000 


$6,000,000 


$4,000,000 


$2,000,000 


$0 


($2,000,000) 


Board Approved Revised 







  


MCSOS General Fund 
Revenue 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$0 


$2,000,000 


$4,000,000 


$6,000,000 


$8,000,000 


$10,000,000 


$12,000,000 


$14,000,000 


LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Other Local 
Revenue Revenue 


Board Approved Revised 







 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


2020-21 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions 
September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Revenues 
LCFF Sources $663,522 $0 $663,522 $663,576 $0 $663,576 $54 $0 $54 0.0% 
Federal Revenue $0 $85,215 $85,215 $0 $69,832 $69,832 $0 -$15,383 -$15,383 -18.1% 
Other State Revenue $8,333 $6,939 $15,272 $9,625 $31,755 $41,380 $1,292 $24,816 $26,108 171.0% 
Other Local Revenue $0 $77,127 $77,127 $0 $18,813 $18,813 $0 -$58,314 -$58,314 -75.6% 
Total Revenues $671,855 $169,281 $841,136 $673,201 $120,400 $793,601 $1,346 -$48,881 -$47,535 -5.7% 


Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $191,991 -$2,043 $189,948 $321,982 $16,474 $338,456 $129,991 $18,517 $148,508 78.2% 
Classified Salaries $89,698 $11,734 $101,432 $90,329 $12,069 $102,398 $631 $335 $966 1.0% 
Employee Benefits $263,247 $3,077 $266,324 $111,321 $12,396 $123,717 -$151,926 $9,319 -$142,607 -53.5% 
Books and Supplies $29,170 $110,279 $139,449 $23,931 $30,534 $54,465 -$5,239 -$79,745 -$84,984 -60.9% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $273,417 $56,355 $329,772 $191,231 $38,168 $229,399 -$82,186 -$18,187 -$100,373 -30.4% 
Capital Outlay $41,311 $0 $41,311 $16,413 $1,390 $17,803 -$24,898 $1,390 -$23,508 -56.9% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $267 $267 $0 $267 $267 100.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs $0 $6,485 $6,485 $0 $5,621 $5,621 $0 -$864 -$864 -13.3% 
Total Expenditures $888,834 $185,887 $1,074,721 $755,207 $116,919 $872,126 -$133,627 -$68,968 -$202,595 -18.9% 


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and -$216,979 -$16,606 -$233,585 -$82,006 $3,481 -$78,525 $134,973 $20,087 $155,060 -66.4% 
Uses 


Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions $0 $0 $0 -$9,579 $9,579 $0 -$9,579 $9,579 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses $0 $0 $0 -$9,579 $9,579 $0 -$9,579 $9,579 $0 0.0% 


Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance -$216,979 -$16,606 -$233,585 -$91,585 $13,060 -$78,525 $125,394 $29,666 $155,060 -66.4% 


1 







 


 


 


 


 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Beginning Balance $1,873,387 $61,847 $1,935,234 $1,858,392 $49,155 $1,907,547 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $1,873,387 $61,847 $1,935,234 $1,858,392 $49,155 $1,907,547 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $1,873,387 $61,847 $1,935,234 $1,858,392 $49,155 $1,907,547 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $1,656,408 $45,241 $1,701,649 $1,766,807 $62,215 $1,829,022 $125,394 $29,666 $155,060 9.1% 


Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $45,241 $45,241 $0 $62,215 $62,215 $0 $29,666 $29,666 65.6% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Assigned 
Other Assignments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $1,656,408 $0 $1,656,408 $1,766,807 $0 $1,766,807 $125,394 $0 $125,394 7.6% 


2 







  Madera County Independent Academy 
Expense 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$350,000 
$300,000 
$250,000 
$200,000 
$150,000 
$100,000 


$50,000 
$0 


Board Approved Revised 







  


 


 


 


Madera County Independent Academy 
Revenue 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$0 


$100,000 


$200,000 


$300,000 


$400,000 


$500,000 


$600,000 


$700,000 


LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Revenue Other Local Revenue 


Board Approved Revised 







 
 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Revenues 
LCFF Sources $3,828,407 $0 $3,828,407 $3,823,564 $0 $3,823,564 -$4,843 $0 -$4,843 -0.1% 
Federal Revenue $196,741 $196,741 $0 $141,382 $141,382 $0 -$55,359 -$55,359 -28.1% 
Other State Revenue $28,724 $302,581 $331,305 $61,816 $162,517 $224,333 $33,092 -$140,064 -$106,972 -32.3% 
Other Local Revenue $25,700 $81,048 $106,748 $11,403 $84,699 $96,102 -$14,297 $3,651 -$10,646 -10.0% 
Total Revenues $3,882,831 $580,370 $4,463,201 $3,896,783 $388,598 $4,285,381 $13,952 -$191,772 -$177,820 -4.0% 


Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $1,719,948 $33,465 $1,753,413 $1,724,520 $26,160 $1,750,680 $4,572 -$7,305 -$2,733 -0.2% 
Classified Salaries $336,692 $12,713 $349,405 $336,672 $13,788 $350,460 -$20 $1,075 $1,055 0.3% 
Employee Benefits $812,897 $233,759 $1,046,656 $809,089 $28,195 $837,284 -$3,808 -$205,564 -$209,372 -20.0% 
Books and Supplies $79,378 $242,851 $322,229 $43,169 $82,301 $125,470 -$36,209 -$160,550 -$196,759 -61.1% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $639,312 $81,003 $720,315 $434,225 $76,112 $510,337 -$205,087 -$4,891 -$209,978 -29.2% 
Capital Outlay $38,500 $0 $38,500 $10,958 $15,433 $26,391 -$27,542 $15,433 -$12,109 -31.5% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,430 $1,430 $0 $1,430 $1,430 100.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs $0 $18,232 $18,232 $0 $11,654 $11,654 $0 -$6,578 -$6,578 -36.1% 
Total Expenditures $3,626,727 $622,023 $4,248,750 $3,358,633 $255,073 $3,613,706 -$268,094 -$366,950 -$635,044 -14.9% 


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and $256,104 -$41,653 $214,451 $538,150 $133,525 $671,675 $282,046 $175,178 $457,224 213.2% 
Uses 


Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions $0 $0 $0 -$34,077 $34,077 $0 -$34,077 $34,077 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses $0 $0 $0 -$34,077 $34,077 $0 -$34,077 $34,077 $0 0.0% 


Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $256,104 -$41,653 $214,451 $504,073 $167,602 $671,675 $247,969 $209,255 $457,224 213.2% 


Beginning Balance $1,126,009 $124,869 $1,250,878 $1,206,421 $124,869 $1,331,290 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $1,126,009 $124,869 $1,250,878 $1,206,421 $124,869 $1,331,290 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $1,126,009 $124,869 $1,250,878 $1,206,421 $124,869 $1,331,290 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $1,382,113 $83,216 $1,465,329 $1,710,494 $292,471 $2,002,965 $247,969 $209,255 $457,224 31.2% 


Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


1 







Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $83,216 $83,216 $0 $292,471 $292,471 $0 $209,255 $209,255 251.5% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Assigned 
Other Assignments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $1,382,113 $0 $1,382,113 $1,710,494 $0 $1,710,494 $247,969 $0 $247,969 17.9% 


2 







 Pioneer Technical Center 
Expense 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$1,800,000
$1,600,000
$1,400,000
$1,200,000
$1,000,000


$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000


$0 


Board Approved Revised 







           


   


   


 


$0 


$500,000 


$1,000,000 


$1,500,000 


$2,000,000 


$2,500,000 


$3,000,000 


$3,500,000 


$4,000,000 


LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Revenue Other Local Revenue 


Pioneer Technical Center 
Revenue 


2020‐2021 Budget Revisions 


Board Approved Revised 







       
       


        
        


         


       
                            
                            


       
                             


       
        


                             
         


         


 
       


       
        
        


       
         


          


 


 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions 
September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Revenues 
LCFF Sources $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Federal Revenue $ 188,269.00 $ 188,269.00 $ 231,060.00 $ 231,060.00 $ - $ 42,791.00 $ 42,791.00 22.7% 
Other State Revenue $ 2,500,249.00 $ 2,500,249.00 $ 2,285,018.00 $ 2,285,018.00 $ - $ (215,231.00) $ (215,231.00) -8.6% 
Other Local Revenue $ 36,426.00 $ 36,426.00 $ 37,645.00 $ 37,645.00 $ - $ 1,219.00 $ 1,219.00 3.3% 
Total Revenues $ - $ 2,724,944.00 $ 2,724,944.00 $ - $ 2,553,723.00 $ 2,553,723.00 $ - $ (171,221.00) $ (171,221.00) -6.3% 


Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries 
Classified Salaries 
Employee Benefits 
Books and Supplies 
Services and Other Operating Exp 
Capital Outlay 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 
Total Expenditures $ -


$ 


$ 


$ 
$ 


$ 


363,411.00 
826,117.00 
566,008.00 
278,588.00 
528,602.00 


-
-


217,505.00 
2,780,231.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


363,411.00 
826,117.00 
566,008.00 
278,588.00 
528,602.00 


-
-


217,505.00 
2,780,231.00 $ -


$ 


$ 


$ 
$ 


$ 


357,654.00 
823,173.00 
518,992.00 
133,017.00 
477,857.00 


-
-


199,546.00 
2,510,239.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


357,654.00 
823,173.00 
518,992.00 
133,017.00 
477,857.00 


-
-


199,546.00 
2,510,239.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


(5,757.00) 
(2,944.00) 


(47,016.00) 
(145,571.00) 


(50,745.00) 
-
-


(17,959.00) 
(269,992.00) 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


(5,757.00) 
(2,944.00) 


(47,016.00) 
(145,571.00) 


(50,745.00) 
-
-


(17,959.00) 
(269,992.00) 


-1.6% 
-0.4% 
-8.3% 


-52.3% 
-9.6% 
0.0% 
0.0% 


-8.3% 
-9.7% 


Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and 
Uses 


$ - $ (55,287.00) $ (55,287.00) $ - $ 43,484.00 $ 43,484.00 $ - $ 98,771.00 $ 98,771.00 -178.7% 


Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In 
Interfund Transfer Out 
Other Sources 
Other Uses 
Contributions 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses $ -


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


55,287.00 
-
-
-
-


55,287.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


55,287.00 
-
-
-
-


55,287.00 $ -


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


64.00 
-
-
-
-


64.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


64.00 
-
-
-
-


64.00 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


-
-
-
-
-
-


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


(55,223.00) 
-
-
-
-


(55,223.00) 


$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 


(55,223.00) 
-
-
-
-


(55,223.00) 


-99.9% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 


-99.9% 


Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 43,548.00 $ 43,548.00 $ - $ 43,548.00 $ 43,548.00 100.0% 


1 







 


         
         
         
         
         


          


 


 


   


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions 


September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 


2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Board Approved Operating Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 


Unrestricted Restricted Total 


Revised Budget 
2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 Percent 


Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 


Changes 


Beginning Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Restatements $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Ending Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 43,548.00 $ 43,548.00 $ - $ 43,548.00 $ 43,548.00 100.0% 


Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Stores 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
All others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Restricted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 43,548.00 43,548.00 0.00 43,548.00 43,548.00 100.0% 
Committed - Stabilization 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Other Commitments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Assigned 
Other Assignments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
   LCAP Oversight 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Differentiated Assistance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 


2 







 MCSOS Child Development Fund 
Expense 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


-$100,000 


$900,000 
$800,000 
$700,000 
$600,000 
$500,000 
$400,000 
$300,000 
$200,000 
$100,000 


$0 


Board Approved Revised 







  


 MCSOS Child Development Fund 
Revenue 


2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


$0 


$500,000 


$1,000,000 


$1,500,000 


$2,000,000 


$2,500,000 


$3,000,000 


LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Revenue Other Local Revenue 


Board Approved Revised 





		Agenda Item 8.4 Board of Education Action Item September 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Fiscal Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 General Fund Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		MCSOS General Fund Expense 2020-2021 Budget Revisions

		MCSOS General Fund Revenue 2020-2021 Budget Revisions

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		Madera County Independent Academy Expense 2020-2021 Budget Revisions

		Madera County Independent Academy Revenue 2020-2021 Budget Revisions

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		Pioneer Technical Center Revenue 2020‐2021 Budget Revisions

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions September 14, 2021 Board Meeting

		MCSOS Child Development Fund Revenue 2020-2021 Budget Revisions










 


  
 


 


 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.5 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021 


Topic:
Review of MCBE BB 9630 Expulsion Appeal Policy  


Background:  
Board Policy 2740 has been renumbered to Madera County Board of 
Education Policy (MCBE) Board Bylaw (BB) 9630.  The duty for the 
MCBE to serve as the appellate Board falls within the scope of MCBE 
and has been added as a section 9600 Appeals to the Board Bylaws. 


MCBE BB 9630 has been revised in accordance with legal 
requirements. 


Financial Impact:
None 


Resource: 
Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Madera County Superintendent of schools 


Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve MCBE BB 9630 Expulsion 
Appeals. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





  


  
 


 
 


 
 


 
   


 
 


 
  


  


 


 


 


  


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


  


  


1 


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 


2000 ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE / APPEALS
9630 – EXPULSION APPEAL 


Expulsion AppealsEXPULSION APPEALS MCBE BB 9630BP 2740 


9600 APPEALS 
Formatted: Normal, Left 
Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold 
Formatted: Centered 


Formatted: Left 


Formatted: Left 


Formatted: Left 


The Madera County It is the policy of the Board of Education will to hear and resolve 
expulsion appeals for pupils who have been expelled by local district governing school 
boards and the student/parent or guardian files an appeal to the County Board of 
Edcuation.  The County Board of Education shall hold a hearing thereon and render its 
decision.  The order shall become final when rendered.  The decision of the County 
Board of Education shall be final and binding upon the pupil and upon the governing 
board of the school district.  Such appeals must be made in writing within thirty (30) 
days following the decision to expel by the local district governing school board. 


Within twenty (20) school days following the filing of the formal request, the County 
Board of Education shall hold a hearing. 


Expulsion appeals shall be heard in closed session, unless the appellant requests a 
public hearing.  When an appeal is considered in closed session, the name of the 
appellant will not be disclosed.  The County Board’s decision shall be made at the end 
of the hearing in public session, and shall require a majority vote of the members of the 
County Board of Education. Within three (3) school days following the hearing, the final 
decision of the County Board of Education shall be reduced to writing and transmitted to 
the affected parties. 


Formatted: LeftThe County It is the policy of the Board of Education will to consider the following 
factors when resolving expulsion appeals: 


1. Whether the district governing board has proceeded without or in excess of its 
jurisdiction. 


a. Hearing is not commenced within prescribed time periods. 
b. Expulsion order is not based on acts enumerated in EC 48900. 
c. Situation involves acts not related to school activity or attendance. 


2. Whether there was a fair hearing before the district governing board. 


3. Whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion in the hearing. 
a. School officials have not met procedural requirements. 
b. Decision to expel is not supported by findings in EC 48915. 


4. Whether the findings were supported by the evidence. 







  


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
               
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
        


            
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


2 


5. Whether there is relevant evidence, which, in the exercise of reasonable 
diligence, could not have been provided or which was improperly excluded at the 
hearing before the local district governing board. 


Legal Reference 
Education Code Sections 
48914 Meeting with Parent or Guardian of Pupil 
48915 Conduct for Expulsion 
48917 Governing Board Responsibilities 
48918 Governing Board Procedures 
48919 Expulsion to County Board of Education 
48920 County Board; Manner of Hearing Expulsion Appeal 
48921 Expulsion Appeal to County Board of Education; Transcripts 
48922 County Board-scope of Review 
48923 Decision of County Board 
48924 Finality of County Board Decision 
4917-20 
48922 
Administrative Regulations 
5740 
Code of Civil Procedure 
1094.5 (b/c) 


Reference:  Education Code: 48914, 48915, 4917-20, 48922 
 Administrative Regs 5740 


 Code of Civil Procedure 1094.5 (b/c) 


Date ApprovedAdopted: 12/18/1989 
Madera County 


By Board: 12/18/1989  Board of Education: 
Revised and Renumbered:  September 14, 2021 







  


  
 
 
 


 
 


 
 


    
 
 


 
 


 


 


 
  


 
 


  
 


 
 


 
  


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


 


   


3 


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 


2000 ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE / APPEALS
9630 – EXPULSION APPEAL 


Expulsion Appeals - ProceduresEXPULSION APPEALS – PROCEDURESMCBE BB AR 96302740 


9600 APPEALS 


Formatted: Font: Bold 
Formatted: Centered 


Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Bold 
Formatted: Centered 


Pursuant to adopted policy of the County Board of Education and EC 48915, a student 
or his parent or guardian may appeal a decision by thea local district governing board of 
a local district to expel the student to the County Board of Education within thirty (30) 
days and that the County Board is required to adopt rules and regulations to be followed 
during the appeals process. 


The County Board of Education hereby adopts the following rules and regulations to the 
matter of expulsion appeals. 


1. Request for Hearing REQUEST FOR HEARING 
a. An appeal to the County Board of Education is initiated by filing, with the 


Secretary of the County Board of Education, a request for a hearing 
before the County Board of Education. 


b. The request for hearing shall be in writing, must be dated and signed by 
the student or his/her parent or guardian and legal representative, if any, 
and shall contain the following information: 


i. Name and address of the expelled student 
ii. Name and address of parent or guardian and legal representatives, 


if any. 
iii. School from which expelled. 
iv. Last grade in which the student was enrolled. 
v. Date of decision to expel student. 
vi. Brief statement of reasons for requesting a hearing before the 


County Board of Education. 


The request may contain such additional information as the student or 
his/her parent or guardian or legal representative, if any, considers to be 
relevant. 


c. The request for hearing may be mailed or personally delivered to the 
Secretary of the County Board of Education at 1105 S. Madera Ave, 
Madera, CA 93637 28123 Avenue 14, Madera, California 93638, and must 
be received by him/her no later than thirty (30) calendar days following the 
decision to expel by the local district governing board. 


Formatted: Left 


Formatted: Left 


Formatted: Left 







  


  


 
 


  
  


 
 


 
 


  
  


 
 


 
  


 
 


 
 


 
  


 
 


 


 


 


 


4 


2. Scheduling of Hearing Date SCHEDULING OF HEARING DATE 
a. Upon receipt of the request for hearing, the secretary of the County Board 


of Education shall place the request on the agenda for the next meeting of 
the County Board of Education for the purpose of setting a time for the 
hearing. 


b. The County Board of Education shall consider the request for hearing and 
shall set the matter for hearing no later than the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the County Board of Education, but in no case later than twenty 
(20) school days following the filing of the formal request for appeal, 
provided that there shall be at least ten (10) days notice of such meeting 
as specified in Rule 3. 


3. Notification of Hearing DateNOTIFICATION OF HEARING DATE 
The Secretary of the County Board of Education shall notify the student, his/her 
parent or guardian and legal representative, if any, and the superintendent of the 
school district involved, of the hearing no later than ten (10) days prior to the date 
set for the hearing.  The notification shall be in writing and shall contain the 
following information: 
a. Date, time and place of hearing. 
b. A statement that the hearing shall be conducted in executive session unless 


the student or his parent or guardian shall, in writing, at least five (5) calendar 
days prior to the hearing, request that the hearing be a public meeting. 


c. A statement that it is the responsibility of the person requesting the hearing to 
submit a written transcription and documents constituting the record of the 
proceedings before the local district governing board to the County Board of 
Education for its review. The cost of the transcript and documents shall be 
borne in the manner specified by Education Code Section 48921. 


d. Copy of these Rules and Education Code Sections 48914, 48915, 48917, 
48918, 48919, and 48920. 


4. Certification of RecordCERTIFICATION OF RECORD 
Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5"A written transcript together with any other documents that constitute the record 


of the proceedings before the local district governing board shall be delivered to 
the Secretary of the County Board of Education no later than five (5) days prior to 
the date set for the hearing.  The party submitting the transcript and documents 
shall also submit with the transcript and documents a declaration certifying that 
the transcript and documents are true and correct copies of the original from 
which they were transcribed or reproduced. 


5. Scope of HearingSCOPE OF HEARING 
Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5"The County Board of Education shall determine the appeal upon the record of 


the hearing before the local district governing board.  No evidence other than that 
contained in the record of the proceedings before the local district governing 
board shall be heard unless the student or his representative claims that relevant 
evidence exists which, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, could not have 
been produced or which was improperly excluded at the hearing before the 







  


  


 


 
 


 


 


  
 


 


 
 


  


 


 
 


 


 
   


 
 


  


 
 


5 


district board in which case he shall be given an opportunity to make an offer or 
proof on that issue.  The record of the proceedings before the district governing 
board shall be limited to the transcript of the proceedings and such written 
documentation and evidence as was actually presented to the district governing 
board and the decision of the district governing board and its findings of fact, if 
any. 


6. Hearing ProcedureHEARING PROCEDURE 
A permanent record of the hearing before the County Board of Education shall be 
made: 


The student or his representative shall be heard first and the representative of 
the district governing board shall be heard second.  Each party shall have the 
right to a rebuttal. 


The President of the County Board of Education shall preside during the hearing 
and shall supervise the hearing procedure. 


7. Scope of ReviewSCOPE OF REVIEW 
The review by the County Board of Education of the decision of the local district 
governing board shall be limited to the following questions: 
a. Whether the district governing board acted without or in excess of its 


jurisdiction. 
b. Whether there was a fair hearing before the district governing board. 
c. Whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion in the hearing before the 


district governing board. 
d. Whether there is relevant evidence which, in the exercise of reasonable 


diligence, could not have been produced or was improperly excluded at the 
hearing before the district governing board. 


8. DecisionDECISION 
a. If, at the conclusion of the hearing, the County Board of Education finds that 


there is relevant evidence which, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, 
could not have been produced or was improperly excluded at the hearing 
before the local district governing board it shall either: 


i. Remand the matter to the district governing board for reconsideration 
and may, in addition, order the student reinstated pending such 
reconsideration, or 


ii. Grant a hearing de novo as specified in number 9. 


b. In all other cases, the County Board of Education shall either affirm or reverse 
the decision of the district governing board.  In any case in which the County 
Board of Education reverses the decision of the district governing board, it 
may also order the district governing board to expunge all records of the 
student and the district of any reference to the expulsion. 







  


 
  


 
   


 


  
 


 


 


  


 
 


 
 


6 


c. The County Board of Education shall prepare and adopt findings of fact 
setting forth its decision and shall incorporate the same into a written decision 
which shall be delivered by certified mail to the student, his parent or guardian 
and legal representatives, if any, and to the district governing board not later 
than three (3) days after the date of the hearing.  The decision shall become 
final when so delivered and shall be binding upon all the parties. 


9. Hearing de Novo HEARING DE NOVO 
a. In any case in which the County Board of Education grants a hearing de novo 


pursuant to 8(a), it shall make a finding that there is relevant evidence which, 
in the exercise of reasonable diligence could not have been produced or was 
improperly excluded at the hearing before the district governing board and 
shall incorporate the same into its written decision which shall be delivered to 
the parties according to the provisions of 8(c) together with the notice of 
hearing date for the de novo hearing. The notice shall conform to the 
provisions of 3, except that there need not be a transcript and documents of 
the proceedings before the district governing board submitted to the County 
Board of Education prior to a hearing de novo. 


b. All parties may appear at the hearing de novo either with or without counsel 
and shall have the right to call and cross-examine witnesses, introduce 
relevant evidence and present oral and written arguments to the County 
Board of Education. 


c. Technical rules and evidence shall not apply to a hearing de novo but 
evidence may be admitted and given probative effect only if it is the kind of 
evidence upon which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely in the 
conduct of serious affairs. 


d. The representative of the district governing board shall proceed first and the 
student or his representative shall proceed second.  Each party shall be 
entitled to a brief opening and closing argument. 


e. A permanent record of the hearing shall be made. 
f. The president of the County Board of Education shall preside during the 


hearing, supervise the hearing, and rule on the admissibility of evidence. 
g. At the conclusion of the hearing de novo, the County Board of Education shall 


make its decision either affirming, reversing or modifying the decision of the 
district governing board according to the provisions of 9(c). 


h. The decision of the County Board of Education must be based on substantial 
evidence. 


10.Relief from RulesRELIEF FROM RULES 
The County Board of Education may grant relief from these Rules under such 
circumstances and subject to such conditions as the County Board of Education 
shall consider to be appropriate and in the best interests of the persons 
concerned. 







  


 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  
      


 


  


7 


11.Order of PrecedenceORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
These Rules are established pursuant to Section 48915 of the California 
Education Code and shall at all times be interpreted and applied so as to be 
consistent with the provisions of the Education Code.  In the event any portion of 
these Rules is found to be inconsistent with or contrary to any portion of the 
Education Code, then the Education Code shall prevail. 


Date Adopted: by Board: 1//9/1990January 9, 1990 
Revised: May 9, 2000 
Revised and Renumbered:  September 14, 2021 


Formatted: Font: Not Bold 
Formatted: Font: Not Bold 
Formatted: Font: Not Bold 
Formatted: Font: Not Bold 
Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt 








 
Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue ⚫ Madera, CA 93637 ⚫ (559) 673-6051 ⚫ FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


 


  
 
 


 
 


Agenda Item 8.6 
 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021 


 
Topic: 
Consideration Acceptance of Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
 
Background:  
The Expulsion Appeal Handbook is a tool to assist expelled pupils and 
their parents or guardians understand the expulsion appeal process and 
the rights of the pupil in an expulsion appeal.  The Expulsion Appeal 
Handbook has not been updated in some time.  This updated version 
includes updated language in Madera County Board of Education Bylaws 
and Administrative Regulations.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Resource: 
Dianna Young Marsh 
Assistant Superintendent 
Educational Services 
(559) 662-3871 


 
Recommendation: 
Approval by the Board. 
 
 


 
 








 


 


MADERA COUNTY 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 


EXPULSION APPEAL HANDBOOK 


 


TO ASSIST EXPELLED PUPILS   


AND THEIR PARENTS OR GUARDIANS  


TO UNDERSTAND THE APPEAL PROCESS  


AND THE RIGHTS OF THE PUPIL 


 


SEPTEMBER 2021 


 







 


Madera County Board of Education Expulsion Appeals Handbook  


Page 2   


Expulsion Appeal Handbook  


 Contents  Page  


 Introduction    3  


 What Is the Purpose of an Appeal?  4  


 When May an Appeal Be Filed with the County Board of Education?  4  


 What if the Appeal is Late?  5  


 Questions Regarding Filing of an Appeal  5  


 Submitting the Expulsion Appeal Paperwork  6  


 What Must Be Included in the Expulsion Appeal?  6  


         Who is Responsible to File the Transcript and Supporting Records of the  


 Original Expulsion Process?  7  


 Setting a Date for Hearing the Appeal  8  


 Failure to Appear at the Hearing  9  


 Filing Written Arguments Prior to Appeal Hearing  9  


 Use of the Appeal Hearing Binder  9  


 Scope and Limitations of the Hearing  9  


 Conducting the Appeal Hearing  16  


         Addenda  19 


A Madera County Board of Education Bylaws of the Board 9630                       20 


Expulsion Appeal  


Madera County Board of Education Bylaws of the Board Administrative 


Regulation 9630 Expulsion Appeals – Procedures 


 


B Expulsion Appeal Hearing Timeline                 27  


C Form – Expulsion Appeal and Request for Hearing                                                29  


D Form – Request for Transcript and Supporting Documents  


 from School District  32  


E Form – Certification of Inability to Afford Cost of Transcript                                    33  


 


 


   







 


Madera County Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 3  


EXPULSION APPEAL HANDBOOK  


INTRODUCTION  


The Madera County Board of Education has prepared this handbook to assist expelled pupils and 


the parents or guardians of expelled pupils to understand the appeal process and the rights of the 


pupil.  A thanks is given to the Sacramento County Office of Education for permission to use their 


format.  The handbook constitutes the official procedures adopted by the Madera County Board 


of Education (County Board) for conducting expulsion appeals.   


Particular attention should be paid to issues noted in italics.  These issues have been found 


confusing to parents and others filing appeals in the past.    


The County Board is committed to an objective review of and deliberation upon appeals of pupils 


expelled from local school districts.    


This information must be reviewed in conjunction with the laws on pupil discipline and expulsion 


appeals within the California Education Code, Sections 48900-48927.  You must also review the 


school district’s policies and administrative procedures for suspension and expulsion.  Remember, 


you are entitled to review the record of the school district’s hearing and supporting records or 


documents.  You have the right to consult with, and engage the services of, an advocate or an 


attorney.    







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 4  


WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF AN APPEAL?  


The County Board has a limited authority under law to review the procedures followed by the 


school district prior to expelling a pupil to determine:  whether the Education Code was complied 


with; whether “due process” was afforded; and whether there is evidence to support the local 


governing board’s findings and decision supporting the expulsion.    


⚫ The issues that the County Board may consider are described more fully in this 


handbook under “SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF HEARING”. 


⚫ The meeting at which the County Board considers the appeal is not a new hearing 


(de novo) to consider evidence about whether the pupil should have been expelled.  


The County Board will “hear” evidence only in unusual circumstances. The 


purpose of the appeal hearing is to listen to arguments as to whether the local 


school district procedures and the law were properly followed. 


⚫ The County Board does not have any authority to agree or disagree with the local 


school district governing board’s decision to expel or to modify the expulsion on 


the basis that the penalty was too harsh for the misconduct. 


The County Board’s review of the appeal for the legal errors it has authority to review may result 


in:  (1) upholding the expulsion decision; (2) reversing the decision and returning the pupil to 


attend in the local district, as well as possibly expunging the record of the expulsion; or (3) in rare 


cases, returning the case to the local school district either to consider additional evidence or to 


revise the factual findings.    


⚫ A decision to overturn the expulsion and return the pupil to the local school district 


does not order attendance at the former school or at any particular school.  The 


local school district has authority to determine attendance within district programs. 


⚫ The County Board’s decision will address only expulsion issues.  It will not review 


or order any change in the pupil’s suspension pending expulsion. 


WHEN MAY AN APPEAL BE FILED WITH THE COUNTY BOARD OF 


EDUCATION?  


The parent of the expelled pupil may file an appeal with the County Board within thirty (30) 


calendar days following the decision by the school district’s governing board to expel the pupil.    


⚫ “Parent” also includes guardian or legal counsel on behalf of the parent.  The pupil 


may also file an appeal independently of his/her parents. 


⚫ The thirty (30) day period starts on the first day after the date the school district’s 


governing board takes action even if notice of the decision is not mailed to the 


parent immediately.  The appeal must be actually received within the thirty (30) 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 5  


days, not just mailed.  If the deadline is on a Saturday, Sunday, or County Office 


holiday, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.    


⚫ Only the governing board of a school district may expel a pupil.  The principal of 


the pupil’s school, or the superintendent of the school district, may only 


recommend the expulsion to the governing board.  A hearing officer or an 


administrative panel may conduct the expulsion hearing, develop findings of fact, 


and make a recommendation to the governing board.  However, there is no 


expulsion until the school district governing board takes formal action to expel. 


⚫ An expulsion or a suspended expulsion (where the pupil is returned to school with 


conditions of probation) may be appealed.  The thirty (30) day timeline applies 


from the initial suspended expulsion decision, not at a later date if the pupil is 


expelled for violating probation. 


WHAT IF THE APPEAL IS LATE?  


The County Board has no jurisdiction to consider a late appeal.  Any appeal filed after the 


deadline will be returned, accompanied by a cover letter indicating that the appeal was not 


processed.  


QUESTIONS REGARDING THE FILING OF AN APPEAL  


A parent considering whether to file an expulsion appeal with the County Board and/or having any 


questions should contact by telephone, facsimile, or mail:  


Dianna Marsh, Assistant Superintendent 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


Phone:  (559) 662-3871 


Fax:  (559) 661-3551 


Email: dmarsh@mcsos.org 


 


The Madera County Superintendent of Schools staff will answer questions and clarify the 


procedures outlined in this handbook.  The staff will also contact the administration of the local 


school district that implemented the expulsion in order to coordinate the processing of the appeal.  


Note:  Contacting the Madera County Superintendent of Schools with questions or a request to file 


an appeal does not constitute the filing of an appeal, and has no impact on the deadline for filing 


an appeal.  


 


 


 
 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 6  


SUBMITTING THE EXPULSION APPEAL PAPERWORK  
The notice of appeal may be submitted in person or by mail to:  


Dianna Marsh, Assistant Superintendent 


Madera County Superintendent of  Schools 


1105 S. Madera Ave.  


Madera, CA  93637 


 


 


WHAT MUST BE INCLUDED IN THE EXPULSION APPEAL?  


The written notice of appeal must contain all of the following information:  


⚫ Name, address, and date of birth of the expelled pupil; 


⚫ Names, addresses and telephone numbers of the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the pupil 


and the person or attorney, if any, representing the pupil; 


⚫ School district, school, and grade from which the pupil was expelled; 


⚫ The date of the school district governing board’s decision to expel and the effective 


dates of the expulsion; 


⚫ A copy of the appellant’s written request to the expelling school district to prepare 


a transcript of the district expulsion hearing. 


⚫ A brief statement, or set of statements, which explain why, in your opinion or 


belief, the decision of the school district governing board should be reversed.  The 


statement(s) must relate to one or more of the conditions described in this 


handbook under “SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE HEARING”.  It is your 


responsibility to explain as clearly as possible and to provide specific information 


about why you believe the school district governing board’s decision should be 


reversed. 


⚫ Attach a copy of the notice of expulsion sent by the local school district. 


⚫ Identifying New Evidence - you must clearly indicate whether you plan to offer 


new evidence which was not raised at the time the original expulsion hearing was 


held and describe such evidence.  See “SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE 


HEARING” for a discussion of new evidence. 


Parents are encouraged to use the “EXPULSION APPEAL AND REQUEST FOR HEARING”  


(Addendum C) in this handbook in lieu of writing a letter.  


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 7  


WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING THE TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING 


RECORDS OF THE ORIGINAL EXPULSION HEARING?  


 A. Parent Responsibility: 


The parent is responsible for immediately requesting that the local school district 


provide a transcript of the expulsion hearing and a copy of all documents from the 


first date of suspension.    


⚫ At the same time the parent files the appeal with the County Board, he/she must 


submit to the expelling school district a written request for a copy of the written 


transcript of the expulsion hearing and all supporting documents or records. 


A “REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING 


DOCUMENTS” is provided at the back of this handbook (Addendum D).  The 


parent shall file a copy of this request for transcript with the County Board 


at the time of filing the appeal. 


The parent must pay the local school district for the cost of preparing the transcript 


and copies of supporting documents or records, except in one of these situations:  


⚫ Where the parent certifies to the school district that he/she cannot reasonably 


afford the cost of preparing the transcript because of limited income, 


exceptional necessary expenses, or both.  A “CERTIFICATION OF 


INABILITY TO AFFORD COST OF TRANSCRIPT,” is provided at the back 


of this handbook (Addendum E). 


⚫ In a case where the County Board reverses the decision of the school district 


governing board, the County Board shall require that the school district 


governing board reimburse a parent who has paid for the cost of preparing the 


transcript and supporting documents or records.  


B.  Local School District Responsibility: 


The local school district is responsible for preparing an accurate written transcription of 


the expulsion hearing and copies of all hearing exhibits and correspondence regarding the 


suspension and expulsion, including documentation that reflects the findings of fact, the 


recommendation of the panel conducting the hearing, and the governing board’s action on 


the recommendation.  


⚫ The school district shall prepare two copies of the transcript, supporting 


documents, and records within ten (10) school days following receipt of the 


parent’s written request.  The school district shall mail one copy of these 


documents directly to the County Superintendent’s designee, with a second 


copy mailed to the parent as directed on the transcript request form. 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 8  


⚫ Special Education Records - if the expelled pupil is enrolled in special 


education, or afforded the rights of a special education pupil prior to expulsion, 


the school district must identify substantiation in the hearing record (or provide 


additional documentation) that the legally required procedures were completed 


prior to commencing the expulsion hearing.  A copy of the “manifestation” 


IEP may suffice for this requirement. 


SETTING A DATE FOR THE HEARING APPEAL  


Once the written transcript of the expulsion hearing and copies of the supporting documents or 


records have been filed with the Madera County Superintendent of Schools, the County 


Superintendent of Schools will schedule a date for a meeting of the County Board to consider the 


appeal.  


⚫ The County Board will hold a hearing within twenty (20) school days 


following receipt of the transcript and supporting documents, unless the parent 


or the district requests a postponement. 


⚫ Either the parent or the local school district may request a postponement by 


submitting a written request, including the reason, to the Madera County 


Superintendent of Schools at least five (5) calendar days prior to the hearing.  


The request shall be acted upon by the County Superintendent of Schools 


within two days after determining whether the request is based upon good 


cause. Any request for postponement made less than five (5) calendar days 


prior to the hearing will be considered by the County Board at the hearing.  The 


request will be granted only upon finding that a compelling reason or an 


emergency exists. 


⚫ Both the parent and the school district will be sent notice of the hearing date 


by mail at least ten (10) calendar days before the hearing.  The notice will 


specify the date, time, and place of the hearing.  The County Board holds 


regular meetings on the second Tuesday of each month at the Madera County 


Superintendent of Schools Conference Center.   Expulsion appeals are 


normally scheduled to commence between 3:30 p.m. and 5:00 p.m.  The 


County Board may be required to schedule a special meeting with a different 


date or time to hear the appeal, depending upon its regular business. 


The hearing will be held in closed session unless the parent has requested an open session 


in writing either by an indication in the space provided on the “EXPULSION APPEAL 


AND REQUEST FOR HEARING” (Addendum C) or by a separate written request filed 


with the Madera County Superintendent of Schools at least five (5) calendar days prior to 


the hearing date.    







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 9  


FAILURE TO APPEAR AT THE HEARING  


Participation at the appeal hearing is required.  If a parent or representative of a student fails to 


appear after filing an expulsion appeal, the County Board may dismiss the appeal without 


considering its merits.  


FILING WRITTEN ARGUMENTS PRIOR TO THE APPEAL HEARING  


The parent, or a representative, may file a written argument or an appeal brief with the County 


Board.  Any written argument must be filed at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date set 


for the hearing before the County Board.  The parent must send or deliver a copy of the argument 


to the school district at the same time.  The parent may also file a response to any initial written 


argument submitted by the district, not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the hearing.  The 


parent must send or deliver a copy of the response to the school district at the same time.   


The school district also has the right to submit a written argument, or a reply brief, with the County 


Board.  The district’s initial argument must be filed at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the 


hearing date.  If the parent files a written argument, the district’s response, if any, shall be filed 


not less than five (5) days prior to the date of the hearing.  The district shall also provide the parent 


with a copy of its reply argument by personal service or by mail no later than the date upon which 


the district’s reply argument or brief is filed.    


USE OF THE APPEAL HEARING BINDER  


Approximately four (4) calendar days prior to the hearing, both the parent and the district will 


receive from the Madera County Superintendent of Schools, a packet that will include all of the 


information that has been submitted during the appeal process.  Use of the packet is very important 


in preparing for the appeal hearing.  


⚫ The packet will typically contain:  (Tab 1) parent appeal documents; (Tab 2) 


discipline review board packet; (Tab 3) findings of facts; (Tab 4) expulsion 


hearing transcript; (Tab 5) district correspondence to parents, and (Tab 6) 


district response. 


⚫ All pages in the binder are numbered consecutively.  Both parties are 


encouraged to refer to the page numbers of the original expulsion hearing 


transcript and other documents in this binder during their presentation. 


Referring to page numbers will assist the County Board of Education members 


in following the presentation. 


SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE APPEAL HEARING  


The County Board decides an appeal after:  (1) reviewing the expulsion record, including the 


transcript and documents considered at the original expulsion hearing; (2) considering the issues 


raised by the parent in the appeal as well as issues apparent from the record itself and the school 


district’s arguments; and (3) determining which issues it has authority under law to address.    







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 10  


Please keep in mind that the County Board’s charge is to determine if the pupil’s due process 


rights were violated in a manner which resulted in the pupil receiving an unfair hearing.  It is not 


the charge of the County Board to agree or disagree with the school district governing board’s 


decision to expel the pupil, but to ensure that procedures were followed and that a fair hearing 


was conducted.  


 A. New Evidence. 


A request to offer new evidence must be noted when filing the notice of appeal.  At the 


appeal hearing, the County Board will hear no evidence other than the information that is 


already contained in the packet.  That information should consist only of witness 


testimony, written witness statements, and documents which were considered at the 


original expulsion hearing, plus official district records documenting the suspension, 


correspondence, and the appeal documents.    


⚫ Examples of evidence which may not be raised for the first time:  Additional 


information about the facts surrounding the pupil’s misconduct; the pupil’s 


prior good behavior; or incidents occurring during the district’s investigation 


of the misconduct if the information was known or available prior to the 


original expulsion hearing.  That evidence should have been offered at the 


school district hearing rather than now. 


⚫ Examples of proper arguments to raise at the appeal hearing in support of an 


issue raised in the appeal:  “The pupil denied being present when the school 


property was stolen during the investigation of the incident and during his 


testimony at the expulsion hearing.  (See testimony, page 112, and witness 


statement, page 143.)  No other non-hearsay evidence exists in the record to 


support the finding of fact that he participated in the theft.”  All the evidence 


being referred to in this statement was already presented at the expulsion 


hearing. 


Exception to Considering New Evidence.  There is one very limited exception to the 


County Board not considering new evidence.  If the parent proposes an offer of new 


evidence, the County Board will either allow an explanation of what the new evidence is 


and what issue it relates to (called an “offer of proof”), or will review the document in 


question.    


The County Board will vote to allow new evidence to be offered only if a majority of the 


members find that the evidence qualifies as:    


⚫ Relevant and material evidence which, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, 


could not have been produced at the school district expulsion hearing; or 


⚫ Relevant and material evidence which was improperly excluded at the school 


district expulsion hearing; and further, that 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 11  


⚫ The evidence, if received, would be a significant factor in determining the 


outcome of an issue in the case over which the County Board has jurisdiction 


to decide (Education Code § 48922). 


If the County Board votes to hear new evidence, it may either:   


⚫ Remand (send) the matter to the school district governing board for 


reconsideration, along with such instructions the County Board may deem 


necessary.  The County Board may order reconsideration of the entire matter or 


any part thereof.  The County Board may order the pupil reinstated pending 


such reconsideration; or 


⚫ Grant a new hearing (hearing de novo) before the County Board upon 


reasonable notice to all parties and in conformance with regulations of the 


County Board; or 


In the event that the County Board determines it is neither appropriate to remand the matter 


to the school district governing board for reconsideration (because the issue is one which the school 


district could not impartially decide, e.g., “an administrator allegedly told the parents not to attend 


the expulsion hearing because it would not make any difference”) or to conduct a new de novo 


hearing (e.g., because the pupil’s misconduct is not the issue on appeal), the County Board 


members may vote to allow new “sworn evidence” or documents limited to the issue raised.  If the 


taking of new evidence at the same meeting would be prejudicial to the school district (e.g., 


because a rebuttal witness is not present at the hearing), the County Board may recess the hearing 


to a future date to receive evidence relevant to the issue raised. B. Legal Issue That May Be 


Considered. 


The County Board’s review of the case shall be limited to the following four questions.  


While these questions are phrased in legal terminology [Code of Civil Procedure §§ 


1094.5(b) and (c)] and [Education Code § 48922], there are many factual issues that fall 


within these questions.  


1. Whether the school district governing board acted within or in excess of its 


jurisdiction? 


Explanation:  The California Education Code spells out the reasons for 


which a pupil may be expelled, the timelines that must be met during 


expulsion proceedings, and that the misconduct must be related to school 


activities or attendance.  If any of the laws on these subjects were not strictly 


complied with by the local school district, the final action to expel by the 


district governing board may have been in “excess of its jurisdiction.”  


For example:  


⚫ Was the offense for which the pupil was expelled one of the “grounds” for 


expulsion authorized by state law or local board rule?  A pupil may not be 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 12  


expelled unless the offense is a violation of the California Education Code or 


school rules adopted under Education Code § 35291.5. 


⚫ If the expulsion was based on a local board rule, was the rule a reasonable and 


valid one and not inconsistent with state law? 


⚫ Did the situation involve conduct related to a school activity or to school 


attendance? 


⚫ Was the expulsion hearing commenced and a final decision issued within the 


time limits prescribed by law? 


Special Education - if the pupil receives special education services, the County 


Board will also consider the following:  


⚫ Was there a pre-expulsion “manifestation” meeting of the IEP team prior to the 


expulsion hearing?  And was it determined that the misconduct was not a 


manifestation of the student’s disability? [Education Code § 48915.5(a)], [CFR 


300.530 (e)] and [U.S.C. Title 20 Section 1415 (k)]. 


NOTE:  The school district does not have jurisdiction to expel a special 


education pupil unless the special education meetings and procedures 


established by law preceding expulsion have been completed.  


2. Whether there was a “fair hearing” before the governing board? 


The word “fair” is a legal term.  It does not mean fair in the everyday sense 


of “fair play” or “fair treatment.”  The County Board does not have authority 


to overturn an expulsion because another pupil received a suspension while 


your pupil was expelled arising from the same incident. 


Explanation:  The school district is required to provide a parent timely 


notice of a hearing; allow the parent to hear and examine all evidence 


submitted; and provide the parent a reasonable opportunity to present 


evidence to deny, explain, or mitigate the allegations. (Education Code §§ 


48918)  Although only the governing board may take action to expel, the 


board may appoint an administrative panel or hearing officer to hear the 


case; develop “findings of fact”; and make a recommended decision to the 


governing board.  Thus, an administrative panel or hearing officer may 


conduct the required fair hearing on behalf of the governing board.  A 


subsequent hearing before the governing board is not required if the 


expulsion hearing is conducted by an administrative panel or a hearing 


officer.    


For example:  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 13  


⚫ Was the pupil denied the right to be represented by an advocate or by legal 


counsel? 


⚫ Was the pupil prohibited from introducing testimony of witnesses on 


his/her behalf? 


⚫ Was the evidence submitted in support of the expulsion the kind of evidence 


upon which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely on in serious affairs? 


⚫ Was there a failure to introduce any evidence to support the decision to 


expel? 


⚫ Was the pupil or the pupil’s representative, if any, given an opportunity to 


confront and question any witnesses who testified at the hearing except as 


provided in Education Code § 48918(f)? 


⚫ Was the parent adequately advised of his/her rights to fully participate in 


the hearing? 


3. Whether there was a “prejudicial abuse of discretion” in the hearing or in 


the processing of the expulsion? 


Explanation:  Abuse of Discretion - an abuse of discretion (although not 


necessarily a prejudicial abuse) would be established under any of the 


following circumstances: 


a.         If the school district governing board did not proceed with the expulsion in 


the manner required by law; or 


A school district’s violation of any statute governing the expulsion 


process that is not “jurisdictional,” may still constitute an abuse of 


discretion. 


For example: 


⚫ Hearing panel member is from same school as pupil (Education Code 


§ 48918(d); 


⚫ Parent received notice of hearing eight (8) days in advance instead of 


ten (10) days in advance (Education Code § 48918(b); 


⚫ Governing board issues expulsion decision with no date set to 


consider readmission of the pupil Education Code § 48916(a). 


b. If the decision to expel is not supported by the findings prescribed by 


Education Code § 48915; or 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 14  


Factual Findings - a “finding” must be written in the expulsion 


decision describing the conduct the pupil engaged in which is a basis 


for the expulsion.  The finding must spell out the facts (where, when, 


what) sufficiently to verify that the pupil engaged in misconduct.  


The finding must be based upon evidence provided during the 


expulsion hearing, not information provided to the panel members 


or Board members at another time. 


For example: 


⚫ John J. brought a knife to school on 9/12/12.  John took the knife 


out of his backpack and showed it to two pupils during third 


period class. 


⚫ (Wrong) John J. violated Education Code § 48900(b) by 


bringing a dangerous weapon to school. 


Additional Findings - the law establishes  five types of misconduct 


for which expulsion is “mandatory” including, firearms, brandishing 


a knife, selling drugs,  sexual assault and possession of explosives 


(Education Code § 48915(c).  For all other types of misconduct, the 


governing board must also find either of the following facts:  


(1)         Other means of correction are not feasible or have 


repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct; or 


For Example:  


⚫ The pupil has previously been warned and later 


suspended on three different occasions for using 


profanity toward his teacher in the classroom.  These 


corrections have failed to curb his defiance of valid 


authority and disruption of the class [Education Code §§ 


48900(k) and 48915(e)(1)]. 


(2)       Due to the nature of the violation (misconduct), the presence 


of the pupil causes a continuing danger to the physical safety 


of the pupil or others. 


The California Attorney General has advised that making this finding 


involves:  (1) a generalized determination based upon the type of 


misconduct involved (e.g., drinking alcohol on campus); and (2) a 


connection to the potential future impact on the safety of the pupil or on 


other pupils (97 Op. Att’y Gen. No. 903).  In practice, it is very difficult to 


determine whether the finding is justified because it is based upon 


conclusion and prediction rather than facts.  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 15  


The County Board has the option to return the case to the local school 


district if it determines that the “findings of fact” are inadequate, but that 


evidence does exist in the record to support proper findings. Upon remand, 


the local school board would be required to revise the findings of fact 


consistent with the direction of the County Board.  The second decision 


would be appealable again, but the likelihood of the decision being 


overturned by the County Board would be smaller.  As an example, the 


County Board might return a case where the school board issued the 


(wrong) finding listed above and direct the school board to correct the 


finding.  The rationale is that the error by the school board is a technical one 


and the evidence supports an expulsion if the technical error is corrected.  


c. If the “findings of fact” made following the hearing are not supported by 


the evidence. 


Misconduct must be proven by reliable “first-hand” evidence 


offered during the expulsion hearing.  Such evidence may consist of 


testimony by a witness who observed the misconduct; an admission 


of the pupil involved; or in certain cases, by statements made and/or 


written down at the time the misconduct occurred and determined to 


be reliable.  All other statements made outside the hearing are 


considered “hearsay” evidence.  Misconduct may not be proven 


solely by hearsay evidence, although hearsay may be offered to 


support reliable evidence.    


⚫ The finding that a pupil started a fight was not proven where the 


only evidence offered at the hearing was by the vice principal 


who testified that he talked to another who said, “James started 


the fight.”  Neither James nor the other pupil testified during the 


hearing. 


⚫ A written witness report from a yard duty aide was insufficient 


to prove that a pupil smoked marijuana where no other evidence 


was offered at hearing. 


d. Abuse of discretion must be “prejudicial.” 


The County Board must find that an abuse of discretion was “prejudicial” 


to the outcome of the expulsion decision in order to overturn a decision.  If 


an error occurred or a statutory requirement was only partially complied 


with, the violation must have a substantial impact on the process or decision 


to be “prejudicial.” For example:   


⚫ The parent received the notice of hearing two (2) days late, but 


had plenty of time to prepare for the hearing.  The parent 


attended the hearing and made no showing that the late notice 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 16  


affected her participation. Abuse of discretion was not 


prejudicial. 


⚫ The notice of hearing was sent to the wrong address.  The parent 


was never notified of the hearing and did not attend. The hearing 


was held anyway and the pupil expelled for misconduct.  The 


parent objected as soon as she learned that the hearing had been 


held. The abuse was prejudicial to the right to participate in the 


hearing. 


4. Whether there is relevant and material evidence which, in the exercise of 


reasonable diligence, could not have been produced, or which was 


improperly excluded at the hearing before the governing board or the 


administrative panel. 


⚫ See the discussion about offering new evidence in “SCOPE AND 


LIMITATIONS OF THE APPEAL HEARING”. 


CONDUCTING THE APPEAL HEARING  


A. Closed Session. 


Expulsion appeals are heard by the County Board in closed session, unless the parent 


requests in writing, an open session hearing.  In closed session, only the parents, or 


representative, the pupil, and representatives of the local school district are permitted in 


the room with the County Board members and their staff.  In open session, any member of 


the public may attend the hearing. 


B. Hearing Procedure. 


The Board President, or the designated presiding officer for the hearing, will call the 


hearing to order and describe the hearing procedures.  Each person in the room will be 


asked to identify him or herself for the record.  A tape recorder will be in operation 


throughout the hearing. 


The parent, or representative, will be asked to indicate whether he/she noted on the 


expulsion appeal form a request to offer new evidence as part of the appeal hearing.  If so, 


the County Board will listen to an “offer of proof” and decide whether new evidence should 


be allowed.  


Next, the parent, or representative, will be asked by the Board President to present an 


opening statement.  This is an opportunity for the parent to summarize or provide an 


overview of the issues in the appeal or provide any background information which will be 


helpful to County Board members.    







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 17  


The parent will then be allowed to identify the issues identified in the appeal and to provide 


an argument in support of each aspect of the appeal.    


The representative of the school district will be asked to make an opening statement 


reflecting the school district’s position, and to respond to the issues raised in the parent’s 


appeal.   


It is important here to remain focused upon the record of the expulsion hearing contained 


in the binder provided to each participant and on the four (4) questions over which the 


County Board has authority to rule.  They are:  


1. Whether the governing board acted within or in excess of its jurisdiction? 


2. Whether there was a fair hearing by the school district? 


3. Whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion by the school district in the 


expulsion procedures? 


4. Whether there is relevant and material evidence, which, in the exercise of 


reasonable diligence, could not have been produced or which was improperly 


excluded at the hearing before the governing board? 


The parent need not be concerned about making a polished presentation, but it is important 


to prepare the presentation in advance.  Having notes or a prepared script may be of great 


help.  


 C. Issues Raised by County Board Members. 


During and after each presentation, members of the County Board may ask questions of 


the parent and of the school district representative(s).  County Board members may raise 


issues during the hearing based upon their own review of the hearing record.  The appeal 


decision may be based upon these issues even if they are not raised by the parent. Examples 


of issues commonly raised by County Board members are: 


⚫ Has the additional finding been made that either:  (1) the pupil has received lesser 


corrections which have not been effective; or (2) the pupil presents a danger to the 


physical safety of others or him/herself because of the nature of the misconduct? 


⚫ If such finding has been made, has the school district described the evidence in the 


record that supports the finding? 


 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 


Page 18  


⚫ Was the misconduct proven by evidence which shows first-hand knowledge or 


which is not hearsay (or an exception)? 


You and the school district representative should review the entire hearing record prior to 


attending the hearing and be prepared to discuss any issue raised at the appeal.  If the school district 


representative demonstrates that he/she cannot reasonably respond to an issue raised by the Board 


member because of surprise, a continuance of the appeal hearing may be granted at the discretion 


of the County Board.  


D.        County Board Deliberations. 


When the presentations and questions are completed, the County Board will either retire to 


another room to deliberate or excuse from the Board Room all present except the County 


Board, the Board’s legal advisor, the County Superintendent, and any necessary staff.  No 


representative of the school district or the parent will be allowed to attend the deliberations. 


In making its decision, the County Board will take into consideration all of the following: 


⚫ The County Board of Education may not substitute its judgment for the judgment 


of the school district governing board. 


⚫ The County Board may not reverse a school district governing board’s decision 


because of technical inadequacies in the hearing process unless it first determines 


that the error was prejudicial. 


⚫ The County Board may not consider evidence other than that contained in the 


record of the proceedings of the school district governing board except as noted 


in these rules. 


E. County Board Decision. 


After deliberating, the County Board will reconvene in open session and announce its 


decision.  As the County Board consists of seven (7) members, four (4) affirmative votes 


are required to reverse an expulsion decision by a local school district governing board 


irrespective of the quorum present at the appeal hearing.  If the County Board enters a 


decision reversing the school board’s decision, the County Board may direct the school 


board to expunge the record of the pupil and the records of the district of any references to 


the expulsion action and the expulsion shall be deemed not to have occurred. 


Although the County Board must render a written decision within three (3) school days of 


the hearing, it usually renders its verbal decision on the day of the hearing.  The parent and 


the governing board of the school district will be notified of the decision of the County 


Board in writing.  The order shall become final when rendered. 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 19 


ADDENDA  


A MADERA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9630 – 


EXPULSION APPEAL  


MADERA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 


ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 9630 


B EXPULSION APPEAL HEARING TIMELINE  


C EXPULSION APPEAL AND REQUEST FOR HEARING – 2 PAGES  


D REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FROM  


SCHOOL DISTRICT  


E CERTIFICATION OF INABILITY TO AFFORD COST OF TRANSCRIPT  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 20  


ADDENDUM A  


 


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 


9630 – EXPULSION APPEAL 


 


Expulsion Appeals MCBE BB 9630 


The Madera County Board of Education will hear and resolve expulsion appeals for 
pupils who have been expelled by local district governing boards and the student/parent 
or guardian files an appeal to the County Board of Education.  The County Board of 
Education shall hold a hearing thereon and render its decision.  The order shall become 
final when rendered.  The decision of the County Board of Education shall be final and 
binding upon the pupil and upon the governing board of the school district.  Such 
appeals must be made in writing within thirty (30) days following the decision to expel by 
the local district governing board. 
 
Within twenty (20) school days following the filing of the formal request, the County 
Board of Education shall hold a hearing. 
 
Expulsion appeals shall be heard in closed session, unless the appellant requests a 
public hearing.  When an appeal is considered in closed session, the name of the 
appellant will not be disclosed.  The County Board’s decision shall be made at the end 
of the hearing in public session, and shall require a majority vote of the members of the 
County Board of Education.  Within three (3) school days following the hearing, the final 
decision of the County Board of Education shall be reduced to writing and transmitted to 
the affected parties. 
 
The County Board of Education will consider the following factors when resolving 
expulsion appeals: 
 


1. Whether the district governing board has proceeded without or in excess of its 
jurisdiction. 


a. Hearing is not commenced within prescribed time periods. 
b. Expulsion order is not based on acts enumerated in EC 48900. 
c. Situation involves acts not related to school activity or attendance. 


 
2. Whether there was a fair hearing before the district governing board. 


 
3. Whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion in the hearing. 


a. School officials have not met procedural requirements. 
b. Decision to expel is not supported by findings in EC 48915. 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 21  


4. Whether the findings were supported by the evidence. 
5. Whether there is relevant evidence, which, in the exercise of reasonable 


diligence, could not have been provided or which was improperly excluded at the 
hearing before the local district governing board. 


 
 


Legal Reference 


Education Code Sections 
48914  Meeting with Parent or Guardian of Pupil 
48915  Conduct for Expulsion 
48917  Governing Board Responsibilities 
48918  Governing Board Procedures 
48919  Expulsion to County Board of Education 
48920  County Board; Manner of Hearing Expulsion Appeal 
48921  Expulsion Appeal to County Board of Education; Transcripts 
48922  County Board-scope of Review 
48923  Decision of County Board 
48924  Finality of County Board Decision 
4917-20 
48922 
Administrative Regulations 
5740 
Code of Civil Procedure  
1094.5 (b/c) 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:  12/18/1989 
Revised and Renumbered:  September 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 22  


BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 
 


9630 – EXPULSION APPEAL 
 


 


Expulsion Appeals - Procedures MCBE BB AR 9630 


Pursuant to adopted policy of the County Board of Education and EC 48915, a student 
or his parent or guardian may appeal a decision by a local district governing board to 
expel the student to the County Board of Education within thirty (30) days and that the 
County Board is required to adopt rules and regulations to be followed during the 
appeals process. 


 


The County Board of Education hereby adopts the following rules and regulations 


to the matter of expulsion appeals. 


1. Request for Hearing  
a. An appeal to the County Board of Education is initiated by filing, with the 


Secretary of the County Board of Education, a request for a hearing 
before the County Board of Education. 


b. The request for hearing shall be in writing, must be dated and signed by 
the student or his/her parent or guardian and legal representative, if any, 
and shall contain the following information: 


i. Name and address of the expelled student 
ii. Name and address of parent or guardian and legal representatives, 


if any. 
iii. School from which expelled. 
iv. Last grade in which the student was enrolled. 
v. Date of decision to expel student. 
vi. Brief statement of reasons for requesting a hearing before the 


County Board of Education. 
 


The request may contain such additional information as the student or 


his/her parent or guardian or legal representative, if any, considers to be 


relevant. 


c. The request for hearing may be mailed or personally delivered to the 
Secretary of the County Board of Education at 1105 S. Madera Ave, 
Madera, CA 93637 , and must be received by him/her no later than thirty 
(30) calendar days following the decision to expel by the local district 
governing board. 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 23  


2. Scheduling of Hearing Date 
a. Upon receipt of the request for hearing, the secretary of the County Board 


of Education shall place the request on the agenda for the next meeting of 
the County Board of Education for the purpose of setting a time for the 
hearing. 


b. The County Board of Education shall consider the request for hearing and 
shall set the matter for hearing no later than the next regularly scheduled 
meeting of the County Board of Education, but in no case later than twenty 
(20) school days following the filing of the formal request for appeal, 
provided that there shall be at least ten (10) days notice of such meeting 
as specified in Rule 3. 


 


3. Notification of Hearing Date 
The Secretary of the County Board of Education shall notify the student, his/her 


parent or guardian and legal representative, if any, and the superintendent of the 


school district involved, of the hearing no later than ten (10) days prior to the date 


set for the hearing.  The notification shall be in writing and shall contain the 


following information: 


a. Date, time and place of hearing. 
b. A statement that the hearing shall be conducted in executive session unless 


the student or his parent or guardian shall, in writing, at least five (5) calendar 
days prior to the hearing, request that the hearing be a public meeting. 


c. A statement that it is the responsibility of the person requesting the hearing to 
submit a written transcription and documents constituting the record of the 
proceedings before the local district governing board to the County Board of 
Education for its review.  The cost of the transcript and documents shall be 
borne in the manner specified by Education Code Section 48921. 


d. Copy of these Rules and Education Code Sections 48914, 48915, 48917, 
48918, 48919, and 48920. 


 


4. Certification of Record 
A written transcript together with any other documents that constitute the record 


of the proceedings before the local district governing board shall be delivered to 


the Secretary of the County Board of Education no later than five (5) days prior to 


the date set for the hearing.  The party submitting the transcript and documents 


shall also submit with the transcript and documents a declaration certifying that 


the transcript and documents are true and correct copies of the original from 


which they were transcribed or reproduced. 


 


5. Scope of Hearing 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 24  


The County Board of Education shall determine the appeal upon the record of the 


hearing before the local district governing board.  No evidence other than that 


contained in the record of the proceedings before the local district governing 


board shall be heard unless the student or his representative claims that relevant 


evidence exists which, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, could not have 


been produced or which was improperly excluded at the hearing before the 


district board in which case he shall be given an opportunity to make an offer or 


proof on that issue.  The record of the proceedings before the district governing 


board shall be limited to the transcript of the proceedings and such written 


documentation and evidence as was actually presented to the district governing 


board and the decision of the district governing board and its findings of fact, if 


any. 


 


6. Hearing Procedure 
A permanent record of the hearing before the County Board of Education 


shall be made: 


 


The student or his representative shall be heard first and the representative 


of the district governing board shall be heard second.  Each party shall 


have the right to a rebuttal. 


 


The President of the County Board of Education shall preside during the hearing 


and shall supervise the hearing procedure. 


 


7. Scope of Review 
The review by the County Board of Education of the decision of the local district 


governing board shall be limited to the following questions: 


a. Whether the district governing board acted without or in excess of its 
jurisdiction. 


b. Whether there was a fair hearing before the district governing board. 
c. Whether there was a prejudicial abuse of discretion in the hearing before the 


district governing board. 
d. Whether there is relevant evidence which, in the exercise of reasonable 


diligence, could not have been produced or was improperly excluded at the 
hearing before the district governing board. 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 25  


8. Decision 
a. If, at the conclusion of the hearing, the County Board of Education finds that 


there is relevant evidence which, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, 
could not have been produced or was improperly excluded at the hearing 
before the local district governing board it shall either: 


1. Remand the matter to the district governing board for reconsideration 
and may, in addition, order the student reinstated pending such 
reconsideration, or 


2. Grant a hearing de novo as specified in number 9. 
 


b. In all other cases, the County Board of Education shall either affirm or reverse 
the decision of the district governing board.  In any case in which the County 
Board of Education reverses the decision of the district governing board, it 
may also order the district governing board to expunge all records of the 
student and the district of any reference to the expulsion. 


 


c. The County Board of Education shall prepare and adopt findings of fact 
setting forth its decision and shall incorporate the same into a written decision 
which shall be delivered by certified mail to the student, his parent or guardian 
and legal representatives, if any, and to the district governing board not later 
than three (3) days after the date of the hearing.  The decision shall become 
final when so delivered and shall be binding upon all the parties.  


 


9. Hearing de Novo  
a. In any case in which the County Board of Education grants a hearing de novo 


pursuant to 8(a), it shall make a finding that there is relevant evidence which, 
in the exercise of reasonable diligence could not have been produced or was 
improperly excluded at the hearing before the district governing board and 
shall incorporate the same into its written decision which shall be delivered to 
the parties according to the provisions of 8(c) together with the notice of 
hearing date for the de novo hearing.  The notice shall conform to the 
provisions of 3, except that there need not be a transcript and documents of 
the proceedings before the district governing board submitted to the County 
Board of Education prior to a hearing de novo. 


b. All parties may appear at the hearing de novo either with or without counsel 
and shall have the right to call and cross-examine witnesses, introduce 
relevant evidence and present oral and written arguments to the County 
Board of Education. 


c. Technical rules and evidence shall not apply to a hearing de novo but 
evidence may be admitted and given probative effect only if it is the kind of 
evidence upon which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely in the 
conduct of serious affairs. 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 26  


d. The representative of the district governing board shall proceed first and the 
student or his representative shall proceed second.  Each party shall be 
entitled to a brief opening and closing argument. 


e. A permanent record of the hearing shall be made. 
f. The president of the County Board of Education shall preside during the 


hearing, supervise the hearing, and rule on the admissibility of evidence. 
g. At the conclusion of the hearing de novo, the County Board of Education shall 


make its decision either affirming, reversing or modifying the decision of the 
district governing board according to the provisions of 9(c). 


h. The decision of the County Board of Education must be based on substantial 
evidence. 


 


10. Relief from Rules 
The County Board of Education may grant relief from these Rules under such 


circumstances and subject to such conditions as the County Board of Education 


shall consider to be appropriate and in the best interests of the persons concerned. 


11.  Order of Precedence 
 These Rules are established pursuant to Section 48915 of the California 


Education Code and shall at all times be interpreted and applied so as to be 


consistent with the provisions of the Education Code.  In the event any portion of 


these Rules is found to be inconsistent with or contrary to any portion of the 


Education Code, then the Education Code shall prevail. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Adopted:  January 9, 1990 


Revised:  May 9, 2000 


Revised and Renumbered:  September 14, 2021 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 27  


ADDENDUM B  


EXPULSION APPEAL  


HEARING TIMELINE 


Step  Procedure  Responsibility  When  


1  Parent or parent representative makes 


initial contact with County Office of 


Education.   


Parent  As soon as possible after 


local school district 


board’s decision to expel  


2  Expulsion Appeal Handbook is given 


to parent through email, the 


mcsos.org website, or U.S. mail 


(certified), per parent request.    


County  


Superintendent or 


designee  


Immediately after contact 


by parent  


3  Parent files expulsion appeal.  Parent  Within thirty (30) calendar 


days of district expulsion  


4  Parent submits written request for 


pupil’s transcript from district and 


completes “Inability to Pay” form, if 


applicable.   


Parent  Concurrently with 


submission of expulsion 


appeal  


5  District submits to parent and to County 


Office of Education pupil’s transcript 


and other pertinent suspension and 


expulsion documents and notices.    


School district  Within ten (10) school 


days of the receipt of 


written request from parent  


6  Appeal hearing is set and notice of 


hearing is mailed (certified.)  Parents 


and school district will receive notice at 


least ten (10) calendar days before the 


hearing.  


County Board of 


Education  


Hearing is scheduled to 


convene within twenty 


(20) school days after 


receipt of transcript and 


other documents 


7  Parents submit to County Office of 


Education any written argument, brief 


or documents not delivered previously.   


Copy must also be sent to district.  


Parent  At least ten (10) calendar 


days prior to appeal 


hearing date  


8  District submits to County Office of 


Education written argument or brief, 


and/or response to parent.  Copy must 


be sent to parent.   


School district  At least ten (10) calendar 


days prior to hearing for 


initial brief.  At least five 


(5) calendar days prior to 


appeal hearing date for 


response to initial parent 


argument. 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 28  


 


9  
Appeal packets, are prepared for 


County Board of Education, to include 


all documentation submitted.  


Distribute to parents/pupil, school 


district, County Board members, 


County Superintendent and counsel if 


applicable.  


County  


Superintendent or 


designee  


Approximately four (4) 


days before appeal hearing  


10  Expulsion appeal hearing is conducted 


in closed session unless public session 


is requested (five) 5 days in advance.   


County Board of 


Education  


As scheduled by the  


County Board of  


Education  


11  Closed deliberation by the County 


Board.  


County Board 


(may include 


counsel)  


Following the appeal 


hearing  


12  Decision is announced in open session 


following closed session deliberation.  


County Board 


President or 


designee  


Immediately following 


deliberation  


13  Written decision is mailed to parent, 


school district and legal counsel via 


Certified mail.  


County  


Superintendent or 


designee  


Within three (3) school 


days after hearing  


  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 29  


ADDENDUM C  


EXPULSION APPEAL AND REQUEST FOR HEARING  


 
Last, First, and Middle Initial of Pupil  Date of Birth  Grade  


 
Address (number, street, city, zip code)  


 
School District  School  


 
Date School District Governing Board Voted to Expel  


 
First and Last Names of Parent(s), if applicable  Telephone Number (include area code)  


 
Address (number, street, city, zip code)  


 
First and Last Names of Guardian(s), if applicable  Telephone Number (include area code)  


 
Address (number, street, city, zip code)  


 
First and Last Name of Attorney, if applicable  Telephone Number (include area code)  


 
Address (number, street, city, zip code)  


Please state the reason(s) given by the School District Governing Board for expulsion.  Please attach 


a copy of the Notice of Expulsion, if possible.  


 


 


 


 


An expulsion may be appealed only on one or more of the following grounds.  Check all that apply, 


and give a brief explanation of why you feel the expulsion should be set aside (reversed) in the area 


listed below that is applicable to your pupil’s case.  Attach documentation, if any.  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 30  


_____  The school district governing board proceeded without, or in excess, of its jurisdiction.  


 


 


 
_____  The school district governing board failed to provide for a fair hearing.  


 


 


 


_____  There was a prejudicial abuse of discretion in the hearing as such abuse is described in Education Code § 48922.  


 


 


 


_____  There is new, relevant evidence that could not have been produced at the time of the hearing, or there was 


relevant evidence that was improperly excluded at the hearing.  Explain the circumstances and describe briefly the 


nature of the new or improperly excluded evidence.  


 


 


 


Type of Hearing Requested:  Closed to Public  Open to the Public  
(Note:  Closed hearing is recommended due to student confidentiality issues)  


 


Signature of Parent or Guardian  


NOTE:  This Notice of Appeal shall be communicated to the Madera County Board of Education within thirty 30 calendar 


days following the date of expulsion.  Please print or type all materials, except signature.  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 31  


NOTE:  Only one (1) copy of this Expulsion Appeal and Request for Hearing is required to be filed with the Madera 


County Board of Education.  The County Board will prepare a copy for the local school district.  If you have not already 


received a copy of the procedures for completing your appeal, please notify the Alternative Programs at the  
Madera County Office of Education as soon as possible by calling (209) 468-9265 


SEND OR DELIVER COMPLETED FORM TO:  


Dianna Marsh, Assistant Superintendent       


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 


1105 S. Madera Ave., Madera, CA  93637 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook 
Page 32  


ADDENDUM D  


REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FROM SCHOOL DISTRICT  


NOTE:  This letter must be received by the school district superintendent on or before the date you file the Expulsion  
Appeal and Request for Hearing with the Madera County Board of Education 


 _______________________________________________________   ____________________________________________  
 Student’s Name   Date of Appeal (today’s date)  


 
School District Superintendent Name  


 
School District Name  


 
School District Address  


RE:  Request for Transcript and Supporting Documents from School District  


Dear :  
 (Superintendent)  


This is to inform you that I am filing an Expulsion Appeal and Request for Hearing with the 


Madera County Board of Education relative to the district’s expulsion of my daughter/son, 


.  Education Code Sections 48919 and 48921 require that I  


request from you a transcript of the school district’s expulsion hearing and supporting documents 


certified by you or by the Clerk of the Board to be a true and complete copy.    


 


I understand that these documents will be prepared within ten (10) school days of this request and 


the filing of the Expulsion Appeal and Request for Hearing with the Madera County Board of 


Education, provided my request is within thirty (30) days of the district school board’s decision to 


expel.  Madera County Board of Education procedure requires that either (1) your office send a 


copy of the transcript and supporting documents directly to the Madera County Board of 


Education, or (2) I take responsibility for the delivery of the transcript and documents within one 


(1) day of completion by your office.  I am requesting:d 


 That you send a copy of the documents directly to the Madera County Board of 


Education and a copy to me at the following address:  


 


 
             That I am informed immediately when these documents are ready.  I will then arrange for 


them to be picked up at your office, duplicated, and delivered to the Madera County Board 


of Education office within one (1) working day of their availability from your office.    


Sincerely,  


 
 Parent/Guardian Signature  Print Name  Telephone Number  







 


Madera Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  
Page 33  


ADDENDUM E  


CERTIFICATION OF INABILITY TO AFFORD COST OF TRANSCRIPT  
Provide this document to the district Superintendent’s office, if applicable  


 
Date  


 
Superintendent Name  


 
School District Name  


 
School District Address  


RE:  Certification of Inability to Afford Cost of Transcript  


Dear              :  
 (Superintendent)  


This is to inform you that I, the parent of  , for the reasons listed below, cannot reasonably afford 


the cost of the district’s expulsion hearing transcript.  I request that the transcript be provided to 


me without cost because of:    


Limited income (explain):   


 


 


Exceptional necessary expenses (explain):   


 


 


Sincerely,  


 


(Signature)  


 Board of Education Expulsion Appeal Handbook  


 





		MADERA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION EXPULSION APPEAL HANDBOOK

		TO ASSIST EXPELLED PUPILS AND THEIR PARENTS OR GUARDIANS TO UNDERSTAND THE APPEAL PROCESS AND THE RIGHTS OF THE PUPIL



		Expulsion Appeal Handbook

		Contents Page



		EXPULSION APPEAL HANDBOOK

		INTRODUCTION

		WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF AN APPEAL?

		WHEN MAY AN APPEAL BE FILED WITH THE COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION?

		WHAT IF THE APPEAL IS LATE?

		QUESTIONS REGARDING THE FILING OF AN APPEAL

		SUBMITTING THE EXPULSION APPEAL PAPERWORK

		WHAT MUST BE INCLUDED IN THE EXPULSION APPEAL?

		WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING THE TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING RECORDS OF THE ORIGINAL EXPULSION HEARING?

		A. Parent Responsibility:

		B. Local School District Responsibility:



		SETTING A DATE FOR THE HEARING APPEAL

		FAILURE TO APPEAR AT THE HEARING

		FILING WRITTEN ARGUMENTS PRIOR TO THE APPEAL HEARING

		USE OF THE APPEAL HEARING BINDER

		SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE APPEAL HEARING

		A. New Evidence.

		1. Whether the school district governing board acted within or in excess of its jurisdiction?

		2. Whether there was a “fair hearing” before the governing board? The word “fair” is a legal term. It does not mean fair in the everyday sense of “fair play” or “fair treatment.” The County Board does not have authority to overturn an expulsion because another pupil received a suspension while your pupil was expelled arising from the same incident. Explanation: The school district is required to provide a parent timely notice of a hearing; allow the parent to hear and examine all evidence submitted; and provide the parent a reasonable opportunity to present evidence to deny, explain, or mitigate the allegations. (Education Code §§ 48918) Although only the governing board may take action to expel, the board may appoint an administrative panel or hearing officer to hear the case; develop “findings of fact”; and make a recommended decision to the governing board. Thus, an administrative panel or hearing officer may conduct the required fair hearing on behalf of the governing board. A subsequent hearing before the governing board is not required if the expulsion hearing is conducted by an administrative panel or a hearing officer. For example: ⚫Was the pupil denied the right to be represented by an advocate or by legal counsel? ⚫Was the pupil prohibited from introducing testimony of witnesses on his/her behalf? ⚫Was the evidence submitted in support of the expulsion the kind of evidence upon which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely on in serious affairs? ⚫Was there a failure to introduce any evidence to support the decision to expel? ⚫Was the pupil or the pupil’s representative, if any, given an opportunity to confront and question any witnesses who testified at the hearing except as provided in Education Code § 48918(f)? ⚫Was the parent adequately advised of his/her rights to fully participate in the hearing?

		3. Whether there was a “prejudicial abuse of discretion” in the hearing or in the processing of the expulsion?





		CONDUCTING THE APPEAL HEARING

		A. Closed Session.

		B. Hearing Procedure.

		C. Issues Raised by County Board Members.

		D. County Board Deliberations.

		E. County Board Decision.



		ADDENDA



		ADDENDUM A

		BYLAWS OF THE BOARD

		Expulsion Appeals MCBE BB 9630



		BYLAWS OF THE BOARD

		Expulsion Appeals - Procedures MCBE BB AR 9630

		1. Request for Hearing

		2. Scheduling of Hearing Date

		3. Notification of Hearing Date

		4. Certification of Record

		5. Scope of Hearing

		6. Hearing Procedure

		7. Scope of Review

		8. Decision

		9. Hearing de Novo

		10. Relief from Rules

		11. Order of Precedence





		ADDENDUM B

		EXPULSION APPEAL HEARING TIMELINE



		ADDENDUM C

		EXPULSION APPEAL AND REQUEST FOR HEARING



		ADDENDUM D

		REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT AND SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS FROM SCHOOL DISTRICT

		RE: Request for Transcript and Supporting Documents from School District



		ADDENDUM E

		CERTIFICATION OF INABILITY TO AFFORD COST OF TRANSCRIPT

		RE: Certification of Inability to Afford Cost of Transcript








Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.7 


Board of Education Action Item
September 14, 2021


Topic:
Consideration adoption of instructional materials for the Career and 
Alternative Education Services programs and Special Education programs 
in grades 9-12.


Background: 
Resolutions on the Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional Materials for 
Students Served in Madera County Superintendent of Schools Programs. 
The Board is also required to review and adopt basic instructional materials 
for pupils in grades 9-12.


8.7.1 Resolution Number 2, 2021-2022 Availability of Instructional 
Materials (Special Education)


8.7.2  Resolution Number 3, 2021-2022 Availability of Instructional
 Materials (Career Technical and Alternative Education) 
8.7.3  Adoption of Instructional Materials for Pupils in Grades 9-12


Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures.


Resource:
Jessica Drake
Executive Director
Student Programs and Services


Fred Cogan
Executive Director
Career and Alternative Education Services







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


To determine the Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional Materials for Students 
Served in Madera County Superintendent of Schools programs. 


Tuesday, September 14, 2021
5:15 p.m. 


Conference Room 5/6 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
1105 South Madera Avenue 


Madera, CA 93637 


Note: This notice was posted on August 23, 2021, at seven sites: 


Madera County Superintendent of Schools, Gould Educational Center, Yosemite High 
School, Pioneer Technical Center, Pioneer Technical Center – Chowchilla, Chowchilla 


High School, and Madera County Independent Academy 







AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 


Para determinar la suficiencia de libros y materiales académicos de estudiantes 
servidos en Programas del Condado de Madera Superintendente de Escuelas. 


martes, 14 de septiembre del 2021 
5:15 p.m. 


Sala de Conferencias 5/6 


Comuníquese con Jennifer Pascale para conocer las formas de asistencia o los 
detalles de la teleconferencia al (559) 662-6274.


Superintendente de Escuelas del Condado de Madera 
1105 South Madera Avenue 


Madera, CA 93637 


Nota: Este aviso se publicó el 23 de agosto del 2021, en siete lugares: 


Superintendente de Escuelas del Condado de Madera, Centro Educativo Gould, 
Escuela Secundaria Yosemite Centro Técnico Pioneer, Centro Técnico Pioneer - 
Chowchilla, Escuela Secundaria Chowchilla, y en la Academia Independiente del 


Condado de Madera. 







Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.7.1 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021


Topic:
Resolution Number 2, 2021-2022 Availability of Instructional Materials 
(Special Education)


Backround: 
To comply with Education Code 60119, a public hearing was held related 
to the sufficiency of instructional materials in Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) programs. In this resolution, the 
Madera County Board of Education acknowledges the adoption of 
materials for special education students. The instructional program for 
special education students matches the specifications of their 
Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Students accessing regular education 
programs are provided State adopted textbooks and materials that are 
appropriate for the courses and match their IEPs. These materials are 
aligned to the adopted content standards, are consistent with the cycles of 
curriculum frameworks adopted by the state board of education, and align 
with the materials utilized by the district in which the student is attending.


Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures.


Resource:
Jessica Drake
Executive Director
Student Programs and Services


Recommendation:
It is recommended the Madera County Board of Education adopt 
Resolution Number 2, 2021-2022 on the availability of instructional 
materials for MCSOS Special Education students.







RESOLUTION NUMBER 2 – 2021-2022
Availability of Instructional Materials 2021-2022 


WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education and Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS), in order to comply with the requirements of 
Education Code Section 60119, held a public hearing on September 14, 2021, at 5:15 
p.m., which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place 
during or immediately following school hours, and;


WHEREAS, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public 
hearing posted in at least three public places within the Madera County Superintendent 
of Schools attendance area that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and; 


WHEREAS, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, 
members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 


WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing 
board at the public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to all students, including English learners, in the county office 
of education, and; 


WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” 
means that each pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class 
and to take home, and; 


WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to 
each student, consistent with their Individualized Education Plan (IEP). 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that for the 2021-2022 school year, the 
Madera County Board of Education acknowledges the adoption of sufficient textbooks 
and instructional materials aligned to the academic content standards and consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks as appropriate for Special 
Education Programs. 


ADOPTED by the following vote this 14th day of September 2021. 


AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 


_______________________________________________________________ 
Alfred Soares, Jr., President 







Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.7.2 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021


Topic:
Resolution Number 3, 2021-2022 Availability of Instructional Materials 
(Career Technical and Alternative Education)


Background: 
To comply with Education Code 60119, a public hearing was held related 
to the sufficiency of instructional materials in the Madera County  
Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education programs.  
In this resolution, the Madera County Board of Education acknowledges  
the adoption of instructional materials for Career Technical and  
Alternative Education students.


Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures.


Resource:
Fred Cogan
Executive Director
Career and Alternative Education Services


Recommendation:
It is recommended the Madera County Board of Education adopt 
Resolution Number 3, 2021-2022 on the availability of instructional 
materials for MCSOS Career Technical and Alternative Education 
students.







RESOLUTION NUMBER 3 – 2021-2022 
Availability of Instructional Materials 2021-2022 


WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education and Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS), in order to comply with the requirements of 
Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing on September 14, 2021 at 5:15 
p.m., which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place 
during or immediately following school hours; and


WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education provided at least 10 days 
notice of the public hearing posted in at least three public places within the district that 
stated the time, place and purpose of the hearing; and 


WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education encouraged participation by 
parents, teachers, members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public 
hearing; and 


WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the board at the 
public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were 
provided to all students, including English learners, in the county office of education; 
and 


WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” 
means that each pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class 
and to take home; and 


WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials listed in Attachment 
A were provided to each student, including English learners that are aligned to the 
academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks in the following subjects: 


• Mathematics
• Science
• History-Social Science
• English/Language Arts, including the English language development


component of an adopted program


WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each 
pupil enrolled in foreign language or health classes; and 


WHEREAS, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory 
classes offered in grades 9-12, inclusive; and 


WHEREAS, for students in K-8, the instructional materials were purchased from 
an approved standards-aligned state adoption list as required by CCR, Title 5, Section 
9531; and 







WHEREAS, for students in grades 9-12, the instructional materials were adopted 
by the local governing board following review of the materials and their alignment with 
state content standards as required by CCR, Title 5, Section 9531. 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that for the 2021-2022 school year, the 
Madera County Board of Education and Madera County Superintendent of Schools has 
provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials aligned to the 
academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks. 


ADOPTED by the following vote this 14th day of September, 2021. 


AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 


Alfred Soares, Jr., President 







Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 


Agenda Item 8.7.3 


Board of Education Action Item 
September 14, 2021


Topic:
Consideration adoption of instructional materials for the Career and 
Alternative Education Services programs and Special Education programs 
in grades 9-12.


Background: 
California Department of Education (CDE) requires districts and the 
county office to review and adopt basic instructional materials for pupils in 
grades 9-12 (EC 60422 (a), EC 60451). Materials must be adopted by the 
Board of Education. The materials are listed in Attachment A.


Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures.


Resource:
Jessica Drake
Executive Director
Student Programs and Services


Fred Cogan
Executive Director
Career and Alternative Education Services


Recommendation:
Approval of the attached list of textbooks and instructional materials for 
the use and purchase in Career and Alternative Education Services and 
Special Education Programs of the Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools for the 2021-2022 school year.







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 


Secondary Programs 
Book Title  
Write Ahead, Publisher: Great Source Education (Division of Houghton Mifflin) 
Inside Writing Program, Publisher: Great Source Education 
English/Language Arts, Publisher: American Guidance Service, Inc.  
American Literature 
Basic English 
Basic English Composition 
Basic English Grammar 
English to Use 
English for the Work World 
Exploring Literature 
Life Skills English 
Preparing For Writing Tests 
World Literature 
English/Language Arts, Publisher:  Holt, Rinehart and Winston 
Literature & Language Arts 
English/Language Arts, Publisher:  Pearson Education 
Meeting the Challenge for English/Language Arts 
English/Language Arts, Publisher:  Steck Vaughn 
Vocabulary Connection 
English/Language Arts, Publisher:  Fresno County Office of Education 
California Pass Program 
Mathematics, Publisher: American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Algebra 
Basic Math Skills 
Consumer Math 
Life Skills Math 
Geometry 
Math for the Work World 
Pre-Algebra 
Mathematics, Publisher:  Mcdougal Littell 
Algebra One 
Geometry 
Mathematics, Publisher:  Pearson Education 
Meeting the Challenge for High School Math 
 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Mathematics, Publisher:  Steck Vaugh 
Working with Numbers Algebra 
Working With Numbers Refresher Books 
Mathematics, Publisher:  Houghton Mifflin 
Algebra Two 
Mathematics, Publisher:  Quantum Research and Evaluation 
Algebra (Cyber High) 
Mathematics, Publisher: Houghton Mifflin Harcourt Publishing Company 
Go Math 
Science/Health, Publisher:  American Guidance Services, Inc. 
Biology 
Earth Science 
General Science 
Physical Science 
Discover Health 
Biology: Cycles of Life 
Science/Health, Publisher:  Fresno County Office of Education 
California Pass Program 
Science/Health, Publisher:  Pearson Prentice Hall 
California Focus On Life Science 
Miller & Levine Biology 
Physical Science Concepts in Action 
English Language Development, Publisher:  Heinle and Heinle 
Making Connections 
Visual/Performing Arts, Publisher:  Meriwether Publishing Ltd. (By Suzi Zimmerman) 
Introduction to Theater Arts 
Visual/Performing Arts, Publisher:  Glencoe/Mcgraw-Hill 
Understanding Art 
Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education:  Globe Fearon 
Skills for Independent Living 
Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education:  American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Life Skills Health 
Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education:  James Stansfield Co. (State Center 
Consortium) 
Transitions Curriculum 
Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education:  Arco/Macmillan 
Everything You Need To Know To Score High On the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude 
Battery (ASVAB) (Including All Revisions and New Versions) 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education:  Business Education Publishing  
Career Cruising Online 
Career / Life Skills / Cd 
Top Careers for Twenty First Century 
GED, Publisher:  American Guidance Service, Inc. 
GED Exercises:  Mathematics, Literature, Writing, Science, Social Science (Including All 
Revisions and New Versions) 
GED, Publisher:  Arco / Macmillan 
GED Preparation 
Online Resources 
iReady Plublisher, Publisher:  CTB/McGraw-Hill 
LAS Links, Publisher:  Curriculum Associates LLC 
K-8 curriculum, Publisher:  McGraw Hill 
ELA/ELD: K-6 McGraw Hill Wonders 
ELA/ELD: 7 & 8 McGraw Hill Study Sync 
History & Social Studies: K-8 McGraw Hill Impact 
K-8 curriculum, Publisher:  Pearson 
Science: K-8 Pearson Elevate 
Study Synch   
9th – 12th grade curriculum   
ELA / ELD  
publisher: McGraw-Hill 
Online Learning, Publisher: Glynlyon, Inc.  
Odyssseyware (See Attached List for Complete Course Offerings)  
Odysseyware – Preparing Student for College, Career, and Life  
California Course Guide 2018 - 2019 
Odysseyware full Couse library license includes all items listed plus additional content 
resources and other LMS features 
Easy to use course customization and teacher authoring tools 
Credit recovery, remediation & acceleration solutions 
Single platform supports multiple uses: intervention, credit recovery, online learning, blended 
learning, and more! 
Videos and interactive activities 
Dashboard progress monitoring and extensive reporting options 
Individualized learning pat option with NWEA map growth assessment scores 
Search by state standards, CCSS, and other search options 
 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Core Courses and Electives 
Subject: English Language Arts, Full Year Courses 
Language Arts 300 
Language Arts 400 
Language Arts 500  
English Grade 6, Course Number:  2198 
English Grade 7, Course Number: 2198 
English Grade 8, Course Number:  2198 
English four Fundamentals 
Subject: English Language Arts, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses 
English 9, Course Number:  2130 
English 10, Course Number:  2131 
English 11, Course Number:  2132 
English 12, Course Number:  2133 
English one Fundamentals 
English two Fundamentals 
English three Fundamentals 
Subject: English Language Arts, Not Full Year Courses 
Spelling 300 
Spelling 400 
Spelling 500 
Spelling 600 
Subject: Mathematics, Full Year Courses 
Mathematics 300 
Mathematics 400 
Mathematics 500 
Mathematics Grade 6 – Common Core, Course Number:  2434 
Mathematics Grade 7 – Common Core, Course Number:  2435 
Mathematics Grade 8 – Common Core, Course Number:  2436 
Subject: Mathematics, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses 
Algebra One Fundamentals  
Algebra One 
Geometry Fundamentals  
Geometry  
Algebra Two Fundamentals  
Algebra Two 
Integrated Mathematics 1: Common Core, Course Number:  2440 
Integrated Mathematics Two:  Common Core, Course Number:  2441 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Integrated Mathematics:  Common Core, Course Number:  2442 
Pre-Calculus – Common Core, Course Number:  2444 
Advanced Algebra 
Analytic Geometry 
Coordinate Algebra 
Elective Courses:  
Consumer Math 
Subject: Mathematics, Not Full Year Courses 
Probability & Statistics A 
Probability & Statistics B (Available Late Fall 2018) 
Elective Courses: 
Trigonometry, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Subject:  World Languages, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses 
French One 
French Two 
Spanish One 
Spanish Two 
Spanish Three 
Subject: Science, Full Year Courses 
Science 300 
Science 400 
Science 500 
Science 600 
Science Grade 7, Course Number:  2653 
Science Grade 8, Course Number:  2654 
Subject:  Science, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses 
Biology, Course Number: 2603 
Chemistry, Course Number: 2607 
Physics, Course Number: 2613 
Integrated Physics and Chemistry 
Elective Courses: 
Earth Science, Course Number: 2618 
Earth Science 
Environmental Science 
Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses 
History and Geography 300 
History and Geography 400 
 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
History and Geography 500 
History and Geography 600 
World History and Geography:  Medieval And Early Modern Times, Course Number:  2734 
World Civilizations 
United States History and Geography:  Growth And Conflict, Course Number:  2734 
Electives: 
Personal Financial Literacy 
Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses 
Government 
World History 
World History, Culture, and Geography:  The Modern World, Course Number:  2711 
United States History: Foundations to Present 
Principles of American Democracy, Course Number:  2703 
Electives: 
World Geography 
United States History and Geography: Continuity And Change In The Twentieth Century, 
Course Number:  2709 
United States History: Reconstruction to Present 
Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses, Not Full Year Courses 
Civics 
Electives: 
Civil War, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Economics, This Course Is an A through G Course, Course Number:  2701 
Personal Financial Literacy 
Psychology, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Twentieth Century American History, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Subject: Fine Arts, Full Year Courses 
Art History 
Subject: Fine Arts, Not Full Year Courses 
Digital Arts 
Media Studies 
Electives: 
Music Appreciation, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Music Theory, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Subject:  Business, Full Year Courses 
Business Computer Information Systems 
Subject:  Business, Not Full Year Courses 
Essentials of Business 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Essentials of Communication (Speech) 
Technology and Research 
Subject:  Health, Not Full Year Courses 
Health Quest 
Health Education A, Course Number:   2435 
Health Education B, Course Number:   2435 
Personal and Family Living 
Physical Education 
Physical Fitness 
Subject:  Assessments, Diagnostics and Test-Prep Resources, Not Full Year Courses 
Spark Assessment and Remediation Tool for English Language Arts and Mathematics 
Act® Test Prep 
GED® Test Prep 
Hiset® Test Prep 
TASC Test Assessing Secondary Completion™ Prep 
Essentials of Mathematics 
Essentials of Language Arts 
Skills and Diagnostic Tests for English Grammar and Mathematics 
Subject:  Advanced Placement® (Use with AP® Courses), Full Year Courses 
Calculus 
Comparative Government and Politics 
English Language and Composition 
Human Geography 
Macroeconomics 
U.S. Government and Politics 
U.S. History 
Subject:  Blended Learning Library, Not Full Year Courses 
Mathematics 700 Resources 
Mathematics 800 Resources 
Algebra one Resources 
Algebra two Resources 
Geometry Resources 
Language Arts 600 Resources 
Language Arts 700 Resources 
Language Arts 800 Resources 
English one Resources 
English two Resources 
English three Resources 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
English four Resources 
A-g indicates courses are approved by UCOP.  As of July 2018, future course offerings 
subject to change. AP® is a registered trademark of the College Board®, which was not 
involved in the production of, and does not endorse, this product. Ged® is a registered 
trademark of the American council on education and may not be used without permission. 
The GED ® and GED testing service® brands are administered by GED testing service LLC 
under license. This work is not authorized, endorsed, or licensed by American counsel on 
education or GED testing service, and any reference to “GED” in the title or body of this work 
is in no way intended to imply an affiliation with, or sponsorship by, GED testing service or 
any state or entity authorized to provide GED ® branded goods or services. Act® is the 
registered trademark of act, Inc. TASC test assessing secondary completion™ is a brand 
name and trademark for McGraw-Hill school education holdings, LLC. TOEIC [HISET®] is a 
registered trademark of educational testing service (ETS). This product is not endorsed or 
approved by ETS. 
Odysseyware.Com 877.795.8904 
Odysseyware – Preparing Student for College, Career, and Life  
California Course Guide 2018 – 2019 
As More Schools Expand CTE Programs, Odysseyware Provides A Wide Array Of Courses 
To Support All 16 Career Clusters. Our Rigorous, Media-Rich 80+ CTE Courses Prepare 
Students For The Workforce And Post-Secondary Education. 
Career & Technical Education Courses 
 
Middle School Courses 
Career Explorations one 
Career Explorations two 
Career Explorations three 
Keyboarding and Applications 
Principles of Coding 
Courses in Agriculture, Food & Natural Resources, A Through G Courses  
Introduction to Agriculture, Food, and Natural 
Resources  
Agribusiness Systems  
Animal Systems  
Environmental Service Systems  
Food Products and Processing Systems  
Natural Resources Systems  
Plant Systems  
Power, Structural, and Technical Systems  







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Courses in Business Management & Administration 
Business Law, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Career Management 
Office 2010 Applications 1 Microsoft Word®, 
PowerPoint®, And Publisher® 
Office 2010 Applications 2 Microsoft Excel® and Access® 
Office 2013 Applications 1 Microsoft Word®, 
PowerPoint®, And Publisher® 
Office 2013 Applications 2 Microsoft Excel® and Access® 
Principles of Business and Finance, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Small Business Entrepreneurship, This Course Is an A through G Course 
Technology and Business 
Courses in Health Science, These Are A Through G Courses 
Introduction to Careers in the Health Sciences  
Careers in Allied Health  
Forensics: Using Science to Solve a Mystery  
Nursing: Unlimited Possibilities and Unlimited Potential  
Physicians, Pharmacists, Dentists, Veterinarians, And Other Doctors  
Public Health: Discovering the Big Picture in Health Care  
Scientific Discovery and Development  
Therapeutics: The Art of Restoring and Maintaining Wellness  
Courses in Hospitality & Tourism, These Are A Through G Courses 
Introduction to Hospitality and Tourism  
Food and Beverage Management  
Food Safety and Sanitation  
Lodging Operations Management  
Marketing and Sales for Tourism and Hospitality  
Planning Meetings and Special Events  
Sustainable Service Management for Hospitality and Tourism 
Transportation and Tours for the Traveler 
Courses in Human Services, These Are A Through G Courses 
Introduction to Human Services 
Counseling and Mental Health Services 
Early Childhood Development and Services 
Family and Community Services 
Introduction to Consumer Services  
Introduction to Human Growth and Development  
Personal Care Services  







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Courses in Information Technology, These Are A Through G Courses 
Introduction to Information Technology  
Fundamentals of Computer Systems  
Fundamentals of Digital Media  
Fundamentals of Programming and Software Development  
Introduction to Information Technology Support and Services  
Introduction to Network Systems  
Network System Design  
New Applications: Web Development in the 21st Century 
Software Development Tools 
Courses in Law, Public Safety, Corrections, and Security, These Are A Through G 
Courses 
Introduction to Law, Public Safety, Corrections, and Security  
Corrections: Policies and Procedures  
Fire and Emergency Services  
Law Enforcement Field Services  
Legal Services  
Security and Protective Services  
Courses in Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics (Stem), These Are A 
Through G Courses 
Introduction to Stem  
Engineering and Design 
Engineering and Innovation 
Engineering and Product Development 
Principles of Technology and Engineering 
Science and Mathematics in the Real World 
Scientific Research 
Stem and Problem Solving 
Courses in Architecture & Construction, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Architecture and Construction 
Construction Careers  
Courses in Arts, A/V Technology & Communications, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Arts, A/V Technology, and Communications  
A/V Technology and Film Careers 
Courses in Education & Training, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Education and Training 
Teaching and Training Careers 







Attachment A 
 


Recommended Textbook Adoptions  
Madera County Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education Services 


School Year 2021 - 2022 
 
Courses in Finance, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Finance  
Banking Services Careers  
Courses in Finance 
Money Matters A 
Money Matters B 
Courses in Government & Public Administration, These Course Are A Through G  
Introduction to Careers in Government and Public Administration  
National Security Careers  
Courses in Manufacturing, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Manufacturing  
Careers in Manufacturing Processes  
Courses in Marketing, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Marketing  
Careers in Marketing Research  
Courses in Transportation, Distribution & Logistics, These Course Are A Through G 
Introduction to Careers in Transportation, Distribution, and Logistics  
Careers in Logistics Planning and Management Services 
A-g indicates courses are approved by UCOP. A-g* indicates new course submissions for 
2017-18 pending approval by UCOP.  Microsoft®, Microsoft word®, Microsoft PowerPoint®, 
Microsoft excel®, Microsoft access®, and Microsoft publisher® are registered trademarks of 
Microsoft corporation® in the United States and/or other countries. Office applications one 
and two are independent publications and are not affiliated with, nor have they been 
authorized, sponsored, or otherwise approved by Microsoft corporation®. 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
 
The Art of Floral Design 
The Art of Floral Design 
Delmar Thomson Learning 
 
Math I 
Pacemaker Algebra I (SPED)  
Pearson 
 
Math II 
Pacemaker Algebra I (SPED)  
Pearson 
 
AP Stats 
The Practice of Statistics 
Freeman 
 
Creative Writing 
In a Field of Words – Creative Writing Text 
Prentice Hall 
 
Biology 
Biology: The Dynamics of Life 
Glencoe McGraw-Hill 
 
Biology Honors 9th 
Biology the Dynamics of Life 
Glencoe Science 
 
Pre-Calculus 
Pre-Calculus with Limits (A Graphing Approach) 
Larson, Hostetler, Edwards 
 
US History 
The Americans Reconstruction to the 21st Century 
McDougal Littell 
 
US History 
The American Vision: Modern Times 
Glencoe McGraw-Hill 
 
World History  
Modern World History  
McDougal Littell 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
World History  
World History Modern Times  
Glencoe McGraw-Hill 
 
Chemistry  
Chemistry 
Prentice Hall 
 
Consumer Math  
Business and Personal Finance 
McGraw Hill 
 
Culinary I  
Culinary Math 
John Wiley & Sons, Inc. 
 
AP Biology  
Biology 8th Edition  
Pearson 
 
Food & Nutrition 
Guide to Good Food 
The Goodheart-Willcox Company, Inc. 
 
Basic Wood 
None, iCEVOnline.com  
Delmar 
 
Life Skills  
Health  
Glencoe 
 
AP Calculus AB/BC  
Calculus  
Prentice Hall 
 
AP Psychology 
Myers' Psychology for AP  
Worth Publishers 
 
AP Chemistry 
AP Edition Chemistry 
Brown ISBN 978-0-13-217508 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
Power Mech I  
Small Engine and Equipment Maintenance 
ATP 
 
AP US History  
The American Pagent 
Wadwworth Cengage Learning 
 
Info Tech 
DigiTools - Communication, Information and Technology Skills 
South-Western Cengage Learning 
 
Miscellaneous 
The Video Collection Revealed  
Cengage 
 
Spanish I  
Avancemos! Spanish 1  
Holt McDougal 
 
Spanish II 
Avancemos! Spanish 2  
Holt McDougal 
 
Spanish III  
Avancemos! Spanish 3  
Holt McDougal 
 
AP Government  
Government in America  
Pearson 
 
Math I  
Mathematics 1 Common Core  
Pearson 
 
Math I (H)  
Mathematics 1 Common Core  
Pearson 
 
Math II  
Mathematics 2 Common Core  
Pearson 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
Math II (H)  
Mathematics 2 Common Core  
Pearson 
 
Math III  
Mathematics 3 Common Core  
Pearson 
 
Math III (H)  
Mathematics 3 Common Core  
 
Pearson 
Digital Media Prod  
Adobe Design Collection Revealed  
Cengage Learning 
 
AP European 
History Western Civilization  
Cengage Learning 
 
Psychology  
Prentice Hall Psychology  
Pearson 
 
English 9 (H)  
California Collections: Grade 9 
 
English 10  
California Collections: Grade 10 
 
English 10 (H)  
California Collections: Grade 10 
 
English 11  
California Collections: Grade 11 
 
English 12  
California Collections: Grade 12 
 
English 9  
California Collections: Grade 9 
Houghton Mifflin Marcourt 
 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
Health 2+2  
An Invitation to Health - the power of now - Edition 17  
Cengage Learning 
 
Sustain Ag (H)  
The Science of Agriculture a Biological Approach  
Cengage Learning 
 
Sustain Ag Bio  
The Science of Agriculture a Biological Approach  
Cengage Learning 
 
Civics 
Magruder's American Government  
Prentice Hall 
 
Academic Decathlon  
Academic Decathlon Resource Guides 
United States Academic Decathlon 
 
Anatomy/Phys  
Fundamentals of Anatomy and Physiology Eleventh Edition  
Pearson 
 
AP Lang Comp 
1. Writing America: Language and Composition in Context 2. 
Quick Access: Reference for Writers  
Pearson 
 
Music Keyboard 
Music, an Appreciation : Roger Kamien: Alfred's Basic Adult Course Piano level 1 
McGraw-HIll : Alfreds publishing 
 
AP Eng Lit 
1. The Story and Its Writer, 6th ed. (Ann Charters) 
2. Norton Anthology of Poetry, 4th ed 
 
Art I 
Art Talk -3rd edition (33)  
Art Talk -4th edition (34) 
Art in Focus (71)  
Glencoe/McGraw-Hill 
 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
Art II 
Art Talk -3rd edition (33) 
Art Talk -4th edition (34) 
Art in Focus (71)  
Glencoe/McGraw-Hill 
 
Ag Comm  
Modern Manners and Habitudes 
Potter Style and National FFA 
 
AP Spanish 
Temas and Triangulo Aprobado 
Vista Higher Learning and Wayside Publishing 
 
Economics  
Economics  
Pearson 
 
Engish 9/10 
Edge, short story books, and Close reader workbooks 
California Collections: Grade 9 
 
English 11/12 
Edge, short story books, and Close reader workbooks 
California Collections: Grade 11 
 
Floral Sales 
Gen Math 1-3  
Basic Math Skills & online curriculum 
 
Miscellaneous  
The Office-38 copies 2007 5th edition 978-0-538-44354-8 
 
Miscellaneous  
A Little History of the World 41 copies 978-0-300-19718-1 
 
Physics (H) 
Holt McDougal Physics Textbook - Student Edition ISBN: 
0547586698  
Holt Mcdouglas 
 
Power Mech 2 
None, iCEVOnline.com 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Chowchilla Unified High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List   


2021-2022 
 
Biology  
Glencoe Biology/NA NGSS DiscoveryEdcation.com 
 
Chemistry  
NA NGSS DiscoveryEdcation.com 
 
World History  
Modern Times 
 
United States History  
American Vision 







 


 


Attachment A 
 
 


Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 
 
 
English Department 
 
English I & Enhanced English I (9th):   
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD 
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016  
Adopted May 24, 2016 
 
English II & Honors English II (10th):   
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD     
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016  
Adopted May 24, 2016 
 
English III & Honors English III (11th): 
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD     
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016  
Adopted May 24, 2016 
 
AP Language (11th): 
Language of Composition: Reading, Writing, Rhetoric    
Bedford/St. Martin’s, 2008 
Adopted July 17, 2007 
 
The Bedford Reader         
Bedford/St. Martin’s, 11th Edition, 2012 
Adopted March 28, 2000 
 
Expository Reading & Writing Course (ERWC) (12th): 
Expository Reading & Writing Course, Third Edition    
California State University Online Press, 2019  
Adopted May 26, 2009      
 
AP Literature (12th): 
Perrine’s Literature: Structure & Sense      
Harcourt Brace, 10th Ed., 2009  
Adopted March 28, 2000 
 
English 1A Dual Enrollment (12th) 
The Blair Reader: Exploring Issues and Ideas 
Pearson, 9th Edition, 2016 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 
Mathematics Department 
 
Integrated Math I & Enhanced Integrated Math I (9th): 
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics I    
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 
 
Integrated Math II & Enhanced Integrated Math II (10th): 
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics II    
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 
 
Integrated Math III & Honors Integrated Math III (11th): 
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics III   
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 
 
Mathematical Reasoning With Connections (MRWC) (12th):   
Mathematical Reasoning with Connections, 1st Edition   
California State University Online Press, 2019  
Adopted March 26, 2019 
   
AP Calculus AB/BC (12th):  
Calculus of a Single Variable/Calculus with Analytical Geometry, 9th Ed.   
Brooks/Cole Cengage Learning, 2010  
Adopted June 29, 2010    
         
Statistics & Probability (12th): 
Understanding Statistics, 8th Edition            
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt, 2006 
Adopted May 14, 2006 
 
AP Statistics (12th): 
The Practice of Statistics, 5th Edition           
Bedford, Freeman & Worth, 2014 
Adopted June 26, 2014 
 
Social Science Department 
 
World History (10th):  
California World History: The Modern World         
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 
World History Dual Enrollment (10th):       
World in the Making: A Global History, Volume One: To 1500 
Oxford University Press, 2018 
 
AP European History (10th): 
A History of European Society Since 1300           
Bedford/St. Martins, 2011 
Adopted June 11, 2013 
 
US History (11th):   
California United States History: The Twentieth Century   
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 
 
US History Dual Enrollment (11th):       
American History: Connecting with the Past, Vol. 1 
McGraw Hill, 2014 
 
Civics (American Government) (12th):  
California Magruder’s American Government            
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 
 
Economics (12th):  
California Economics: Principles in Action             
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 
 
AP Human Geography (9-12th): 
The Cultural Landscape: An Introduction to Human Geography, 13th Ed.  
Savvas (Pearson), 2020 
Adopted June 23, 2020 
 
AP Comparative Government (12th): 
Essentials of Comparative Politics with Cases, 7th Edition   
W.W. Norton & Company, 2021 
Adopted June 8, 2021 
 
AP Microeconomics (12th): 
Krugman’s Economics, 3rd Edition      
BFW Publishers, 2019 
Adopted June 8, 2021 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 
Science Department 
 
The Living Earth/AG Biology (9th):  
Open Source: The Living Earth Student Edition     
Printshop, 2021 
Adopted June 22, 2021 
 
Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Honors Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Agriculture 
Chemistry (10th):   
Experience Chemistry       
Savvas, 2021 
Adopted June 22, 2021 
 
Physics of the Universe (11th):   
Honors Physics, 6th Edition       
Pearson Prentice Hall 2005 
Adopted May 14, 2006               
 
AP Biology (11-12th): 
Principles of Life, 2nd Edition       
WH Freeman & Company, 2014  
Adopted May 26, 2015 
 
AP Chemistry (11-12th):   
Chemistry: The Central Science, 14th Edition     
Savvas (Pearson), 2018 
Adopted June 23, 2020 
 
Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th): 
Mader’s Understanding Human Anatomy & Physiology, 6th Edition   
McGraw Hill, 2008  
Adopted August 14, 2007                  
 
Honors Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th): 
Human Anatomy & Physiology, 7th Edition            
Pearson, 2007 
Adopted July 17, 2007 
 
AP Environmental Science (11-12th): 
Environmental Science for AP, 2nd Ed.     
WH Freeman & Company, 2015 
Adopted May 26, 2015 
 







 


 


Attachment A 
 


Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 
World Language 
 
Spanish I-III:  
¡Avancemos!          
Holt McDougal, 2013 
Adopted May 14, 2013 
 
Spanish for Heritage Speakers I-II:   
Nuevas Vistas         
Holt, Rinehart, & Winston, 2006 
Adopted May 14, 2013 


 
AP Spanish Language:   
Abriendo paso: Temas y lecturas & Gramática     
Pearson, 2014 
Adopted May 14, 2013 
 
AP Spanish Literature: 
Abriendo puertas: Ampliando perspectivas     
Houghton Mifflin, 2013 
Adopted May 26, 2015 
 
French I-IV:  
Bien dit!         
Holt McDougal, 2013 
Adopted May 14, 2013       
 
 
 
 







Attachment A 
 


Yosemite Unified School District 
Grades 9-12 Core Curriculum List 


2021-2022 
 


English Department 
 
English 9  
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt (HMH) Into Literature 9 (2020) 
English 10 
HMH Into Literature 10 (2020) 
English 11 
HMH Into Literature 11 (2020) 
English 12 
HMH Into Literature 12 (2020) 
 
Math Department 
 
Math 1 
HMH Into AGA, Algebra 1 (2020) 
Math 2 
HMH Into AGA, Geometry (2020) 
Math 3 
HMH Into AGA, Algebra 2 (2020) 
 
Social Science 
 
World History 
HMH World History (2019) 
America History 
HMH US History (2019) 
US Government 
HMH US Government (2018) 
Economics 
HMH Economics (2018) 
 
Science Department 
 
Living Earth 
HMH California, The Living Earth (2020) 
Biology 
HMH California, The Living Earth (2020) 
Physics 
HMH California, Physics in the Universe (2020) 
Chemistry 
HMH California, Chemistry in the Earth System (2020) 
 
 





		Agenda Item 8.7

		Board of Education Action ItemSeptember 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:



		NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

		AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA

		Agenda Item 8.7.1 Board of Education Action Item September 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Backround:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		RESOLUTION NUMBER 2 – 2021-2022Availability of Instructional Materials 2021-2022

		Agenda Item 8.7.2 Board of Education Action Item September 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:



		RESOLUTION NUMBER 3 – 2021-2022 Availability of Instructional Materials 2021-2022

		Agenda Item 8.7.3 Board of Education Action Item September 14, 2021

		Topic:

		Background:

		Financial Impact:

		Resource:

		Recommendation:

		Secondary Programs

		Book Title

		English/Language Arts, Publisher: American Guidance Service, Inc.

		English/Language Arts, Publisher: Holt, Rinehart and Winston

		English/Language Arts, Publisher: Pearson Education

		English/Language Arts, Publisher: Steck Vaughn

		English/Language Arts, Publisher: Fresno County Office of Education

		Mathematics, Publisher: American Guidance Service, Inc.

		Mathematics, Publisher: Mcdougal Littell

		Mathematics, Publisher: Pearson Education

		Mathematics, Publisher: Steck Vaugh

		Mathematics, Publisher: Houghton Mifflin

		Mathematics, Publisher: Quantum Research and Evaluation

		Mathematics, Publisher: Houghton Mifflin Harcourt Publishing Company

		Science/Health, Publisher: American Guidance Services, Inc.

		Science/Health, Publisher: Fresno County Office of Education

		Science/Health, Publisher: Pearson Prentice Hall

		English Language Development, Publisher: Heinle and Heinle

		Visual/Performing Arts, Publisher: Meriwether Publishing Ltd. (By Suzi Zimmerman)

		Visual/Performing Arts, Publisher: Glencoe/Mcgraw-Hill

		Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education: Globe Fearon

		Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education: American Guidance Service, Inc.

		Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education: James Stansfield Co. (State Center Consortium)

		Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education: Arco/Macmillan

		Life Skills / Job Skills / Career Education: Business Education Publishing

		GED, Publisher: American Guidance Service, Inc.

		GED, Publisher: Arco / Macmillan

		Online Resources

		K-8 curriculum, Publisher: McGraw Hill

		K-8 curriculum, Publisher: Pearson

		Study Synch

		ELA / ELD

		Online Learning, Publisher: Glynlyon, Inc.

		Odysseyware – Preparing Student for College, Career, and Life

		California Course Guide 2018 - 2019



		Core Courses and Electives

		Subject: English Language Arts, Full Year Courses

		Subject: English Language Arts, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses

		Subject: English Language Arts, Not Full Year Courses

		Subject: Mathematics, Full Year Courses

		Subject: Mathematics, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses

		Elective Courses:

		Subject: Mathematics, Not Full Year Courses

		Elective Courses:

		Subject: World Languages, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses

		Subject: Science, Full Year Courses

		Subject: Science, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses

		Elective Courses:

		Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses

		Electives:

		Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses, A Through G Courses

		Electives:

		Subject: History / Social Science, Full Year Courses, Not Full Year Courses

		Electives:

		Subject: Fine Arts, Full Year Courses

		Subject: Fine Arts, Not Full Year Courses

		Electives:

		Subject: Business, Full Year Courses

		Subject: Business, Not Full Year Courses

		Subject: Health, Not Full Year Courses

		Subject: Assessments, Diagnostics and Test-Prep Resources, Not Full Year Courses

		Subject: Advanced Placement® (Use with AP® Courses), Full Year Courses

		Subject: Blended Learning Library, Not Full Year Courses

		Odysseyware – Preparing Student for College, Career, and Life

		California Course Guide 2018 – 2019

		Career & Technical Education Courses

		Middle School Courses

		Courses in Agriculture, Food & Natural Resources, A Through G Courses

		Courses in Business Management & Administration

		Courses in Health Science, These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Hospitality & Tourism, These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Human Services, These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Information Technology, These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Law, Public Safety, Corrections, and Security, These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics (Stem), These Are A Through G Courses

		Courses in Architecture & Construction, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Arts, A/V Technology & Communications, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Education & Training, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Finance, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Finance

		Courses in Government & Public Administration, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Manufacturing, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Marketing, These Course Are A Through G

		Courses in Transportation, Distribution & Logistics, These Course Are A Through G



		The Art of Floral Design

		Math I

		Math II

		AP Stats

		Creative Writing

		Biology

		Biology Honors 9th

		Pre-Calculus

		US History

		US History

		World History

		World History

		Chemistry

		Consumer Math

		Culinary I

		AP Biology

		Food & Nutrition

		Basic Wood

		Life Skills

		AP Calculus AB/BC

		AP Psychology

		AP Chemistry

		Power Mech I

		AP US History

		Info Tech

		Miscellaneous

		Spanish I

		Spanish II

		Spanish III

		AP Government

		Math I

		Math I (H)

		Math II

		Math II (H)

		Math III

		Math III (H)

		Digital Media Prod

		AP European

		Psychology

		English 9 (H)

		English 10

		English 10 (H)

		English 11

		English 12

		English 9

		Health 2+2

		Sustain Ag (H)

		Sustain Ag Bio

		Civics

		Academic Decathlon

		Anatomy/Phys

		AP Lang Comp

		Music Keyboard

		AP Eng Lit

		Art I

		Art II

		Ag Comm

		AP Spanish

		Economics

		Engish 9/10

		English 11/12

		Floral Sales

		Gen Math 1-3

		Miscellaneous

		Miscellaneous

		Physics (H)

		Power Mech 2

		Biology

		Chemistry

		World History

		United States History

		English Department

		English I & Enhanced English I (9th):

		English II & Honors English II (10th):

		English III & Honors English III (11th):

		AP Language (11th):

		Expository Reading & Writing Course (ERWC) (12th):

		AP Literature (12th):

		English 1A Dual Enrollment (12th)



		Mathematics Departm

		Integrated Math I & Enhanced Integrated Math I (9th):

		Integrated Math II & Enhanced Integrated Math II (10th):

		Integrated Math III & Honors Integrated Math III (11th):

		Mathematical Reasoning With Connections (MRWC) (12th):

		AP Calculus AB/BC (12th):

		Statistics & Probability (12th):

		AP Statistics (12th):



		Social Science Department

		World History (10th):

		World History Dual E

		AP European History (10th):

		US History (11th):

		US History Dual Enrollment (11th):

		Civics (American Government) (12th):

		Economics (12th):

		AP Human Geography (9-12th):

		AP Comparative Government (12th):

		AP Microeconomics (12th):



		Science Department

		The Living Earth/AG Biology (9th):

		Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Honors Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Agriculture Chemistry (10th):

		Physics of the Universe (11th):

		AP Biology (11-12th):

		AP Chemistry (11-12th):

		Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th):

		Honors Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th):

		AP Environmental Science (11-12th):



		World Language

		Spanish I-III:

		Spanish for Heritage Speakers I-II:

		AP Spanish Language:

		AP Spanish Literature:

		French I-IV:



		English Departme

		English 9

		English 10

		English 11

		English 12



		Math Department

		Math 1

		Math 2

		Math 3



		Social Science

		World History

		America History

		US Government

		Economics



		Science Department

		Living Earth

		Biology

		Physics

		Chemistry














  
 


 


 


 


   
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 


Agenda Item 8.8 


Board of Education Information Item 
September 14, 2021 


Topic:
Update on Trustee Area Adjustment 
[2020 census data will require balancing of trustee areas.] 


Background:  
Every ten years the school districts and County Board of Education 
review their trustee areas as a result of the information provided in the 
national census. We are currently awaiting the release of the data.  The 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools and all the districts in Madera 
County have contracted with ODELL Planning & Research, Inc. to 
provide an analysis of the data and prepare maps for your consideration. 


At this time the data has been released to states, the states then adjust 
the data and will release the official statewide database. The necessary 
data is expected to be available in approximately two weeks. When the 
data is available to us, the work of our demographer will begin. 


There have been some changes in the laws related to redistricting 
process and requirements for counties and cities.  The expanded 
requirements do not apply to school districts.  There have been no 
changes in the law and process for adjustment of trustee areas for school 
districts. Although, the requirements have not changed.  It is very 
important that this be a transparent process. 


ODELL planning will be providing MCSOS a milestone schedule for 
accomplishing the trustee adjustment process and potential Board 
hearing dates.  As soon as the information and schedule are available the 
information will be shared. 


Financial Impact:
Contracted service with ODELL Planning & Research, Inc. 


1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 



www.mcsos.org





 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


Resource: 
Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Madera County Superintendent of schools 


Julie DeWall 
Chief Business & Administrative Services Officer 


Steve Carney 
Retired Deputy Superintendent/Consultant 


Recommendation: 
Information only, no action is needed at this time. 








 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


Minutes of 
Madera County Board of Education 


August 10, 2021 


Present: Cathie Bustos, Shelley Deniz, Tammy Loveland, Zimri Padilla, Brian 
Ramirez, Alfred Soares, Jr., Joe Vived 


Absent: None 


Also Present: Julie DeWall, Jessica Drake, Dianna Marsh, Jennifer Pascale, Tricia 
Protzman, Manny Rojas, Danielle Ross, Hugo Sanchez 


1.0 Call to Order 
1.1 Flag Salute 
President Alfred Soares, Jr., called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m., followed by the 
flag salute. 


2.0 Consideration of Minutes 
2.1 Regular Meeting July 13, 2021
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Dr. Massetti stated revisions to the minutes were made after the Board packet was 
mailed and those notes were mailed separately.  Changes were marked in red. A 
comment made under agenda item 4.6 was mistakenly removed and will be added 
back. 


Shelley Deniz moved to approve the revised minutes of July 13, 2021, seconded by 
Cathie Bustos, and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Tammy Loveland moved to adopt the agenda as presented, seconded by Brian 
Ramirez and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


1 of 7 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


4.0 Information
4.1 Public Comment 
President Soares, Jr., stated this time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the Board, but not listed on the 
agenda. Board members may listen to, but not discuss matters not on the agenda.  
(G.C. 54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items presented under public 
comment. Speakers are limited to three minutes. 


Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item.  
No one came forward to address the Board. 


4.2 Letters and Communications 
Executive Secretary Massetti reported: 


- The latest edition of Educational News and Views is out.  Copies were provided 
to the Board. The newsletter featured articles on the vision van visiting the Early 
Education Center, graduations, promotions, and Ron Seals retirement in 
October. 


- An article in the Tribune featured graduates from Madera County Independent 
Academy. 


- Dr. Massetti provided a copy of an article on Valley Children’s Hospital 
responding to the Clovis School Board regarding their comments and Board 
decisions on COVID. Mrs. Deniz stated the law says masks do not have to be 
worn by individuals with medical conditions and a medical release.  Dr. Massetti 
noted MCSOS has a form approved by Madera County Public Health Officer Dr. 
Simon Paul to address those individuals needing medical exemptions.  The form 
has been shared with the districts. Countywide, 40% of the population has been 
vaccinated.  Vaccination clinics are available in Madera all of the time. 


4.3 Non-School Sources 
None 


4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) Executive Committee 
Meeting Report
Mrs. Deniz reported the flyer for the meeting has been mailed.  The event will take place 
on August 25 at 7 p.m. at Oakhurst Elementary. The RSVP deadline is August 13.  
Guests may attend for $13. The topic will be “What did we learning during COVID.”  
Tricia Protzman will facilitate table talk discussions.  Three superintendents will 
participate in a panel discussion about what took place in their districts.  


A professional development opportunity will take place on September 18 via Zoom. The 
RSVP deadline is September 3.  Dr. Linda Jordan will speak on SEL: Philosophy to 
Action and Hope in Learning. 


4.5 Madera County Foundation Board Report 
Mrs. Bustos reported there has not been a meeting since the Board last met. 


2 of 7 







 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


4.6 Member Report(s)
None 


5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 MCSOS’ Report on Williams Complaints
Dr. Massetti explained many districts do not hold a Board meeting in July and so, 
MCSOS did not receive many of their Williams Complaint reports.  So far there have 
been no complaints.  If something should arise, it will be brought to the Board. 


5.2 MCSOS General Fund & Charter Schools Actual vs. Working Budget 
Mrs. Dewall provided handouts and a PowerPoint presentation.  She noted MCSOS is 
on target updating costs for salary and benefits. There was a savings in supplies.  
Business is currently doing closeout, so there are still some transfers to finalize. 
Salaries and benefits are MCSOS’ largest expenses. 


6.0 Old Business 
None 


7.0 Closed Session 
None 


8.0 New Business 
8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. Protzman asked the Board to ratify the issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
(TCCs) from July 1-30, 2021. TCCs are issued in order to authorize the individual to 
work while the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing reviews his/her waiver 
request, emergency permit, initial and/or renewal credential application packet.   


Cathie Bustos moved to ratify the TCCs, seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by 
unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 
Mrs. Pascale stated no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda item. 


Mrs. DeWall provided the Board with a list of equipment declared obsolete.  Items 
included: computers, laptops, monitors, iPads, socket hand scanners, a wireless bridge, 
a processor, a desk chair, a CD player, and a projector. 


Joe Vived moved to approve the list of surplus/obsolete equipment submitted, seconded 


3 of 7 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


by Brian Ramirez and approved my unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.3 Investment Performance Statement 
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


Mrs. DeWall stated the County Treasurer-Tax Collector’s investments continue to 
provide as favorable a rate of return as can be expected in the current financial market.  
The current rate of return is 0.50%.  Compared to last year’s rate of return of 1.97% for 
the same time period, there is a decrease of 1.47%. 


Mrs. DeWall added that all of the county funds are included in the investments.  They 
are safe investments. When MCSOS wants to withdraw funds of over $1 million, notice 
must be given two days in advance.  For withdrawals over $5 million, five days is 
needed. 


Tammy Loveland moved to approve the Investment Performance Statement, Seconded 
by Joe Vived and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.4 Consideration of English Learner Plan
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


Mr. Sanchez introduced Danielle Ross.  Ms. Ross is the ELA/ELD program director who 
assisted with the English Learner Plan. 


Mrs. Deniz asked if students are tested once a year.  Mr. Sanchez explained 
students/families complete a home language survey within 30 days of enrollment.  The 
survey triggers an assessment. When students have an ELPAC score of 4 then they 
can be reclassified. The ELPAC is given every spring.  The ELPAC replaced the 
CELDT. The testing window opens in February and goes through the end of the school 
year. 


Cathie Bustos moved to accept the English Learner Plan, seconded by Shelley Deniz 
and carried by unanimous vote. 


4 of 7 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


UNADOPTED 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.5 Consideration Approval of 2021-2022 Budget Revisions 
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


Mrs. DeWall explained budget revisions are necessary because the Governor’s budget 
changed substantially. CTA and CSEA bargaining agreement adjustments along with 
non-represented group adjustments have been included along with step and column 
adjustments for all groups. State unemployment insurance decreased from 1.23% to 
.50%. Special Education funding is now calculated to include an increase to the base 
rate of $715 per ADA for the SELPA amounting to approximately $1 million.  Federal 
funding through the CARES Act has been included in the Federal Revenue amount to 
address COVID needs: approximately $2 million.  Services have increased due to 
additional needs of Learning Loss Mitigation due to COVID and mental health services.  
The budget reflects an increase to the ending Unrestricted General Fund balance of 
$844,971 and an increase of $2,406,919 in Restricted General Fund balance.  The 
overall General Fund balance has increased by $3,251,890. 


A board member asked if $715 per ADA is good.  Dr. Massetti responded $715 was 
increased from $645, so it is more, but it is still not enough.  Services for students with 
special needs are expensive. $715 puts MCSOS at the State average.  MCSOS was 
well below previously. 


Shelley Deniz moved to approve the 2021-2022 Budget Revisions, seconded by Zimri 
Padilla and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.6 Consideration Review of MCBE P 5220 Independent Study 
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


New requirements have been set by the State of California for independent study. The 
changes are outlined in the administrative regulations. MCSOS has 30 days to meet the 
new requirements, which include: meeting with parents to sign new contracts, adopting 
new/revised polices by the first day of instructions. The Board Bylaws state the 
regulations can be written by MCSOS administration. The administrative regulations for 
MCBE P 5220 were written Friday, August 6, 2021. The auditors were provided a copy 
to review. MCSOS may lose one day of apportionment if the policy does not meet the 


5 of 7 







 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


UNADOPTED 


requirement of being Board approved by the first day of instruction which was 
yesterday, August 9th. 


Traditional independent study (15 days or less) will remain the same.  


Shelley Deniz moved to adopt MCBE P 5220 Independent Study and MCBE P AR 5220 
Independent Study, seconded by Cathie Bustos and approved by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


8.7 Consideration Adoption of MCBE P 5221 Instruction – Independent Study
for 2021-2022 
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


With the enactment of Assembly Bill No. 130 (Ch. 44, Stats. 2021), school districts and 
county offices of education are required to offer independent study for the 2021-2022 
school year with limited exceptions.  Administrative Regulations for MCBE P 5220 
implementing this policy are in compliance with AB 130.  The distance learning format 
that was provided in 2020-2021 is no longer available. 


Tammy Loveland moved to adopt MCBE Policy 5221 Independent Study for 2021-2022, 
seconded by Joe Vived and carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


9.0 Other
None 


10.0 Adjournment
Mrs. Pascale announced no written or verbal comments were submitted for this agenda 
item. 


Cathie Bustos moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Tammy Loveland and 
carried by unanimous vote. 


Ayes: Bustos, Deniz, Loveland, Padilla, Ramirez, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: None 


6 of 7 







 


 


 


 
 
 


 


UNADOPTED 


The meeting adjourned at 4:21 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Executive Secretary 


CAM/jep 


7 of 7 








 


 
 


Meeting of  
Madera County Board of Education 


Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
3:30 p.m. 


 
This meeting will be held at  


1105 South Madera Avenue, Conference Room 5,  
Madera, CA 93637 


 
AGENDA 


 
Reasonable Accommodation for any Individual with Disability – Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable 
accommodation to attend or participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Board of Education, may 
request assistance by contacting the Office of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools.  All documents 
pertaining to open session agenda items are available to anyone upon request from the office at 1105 South 
Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Telephone: (559) 662-6274; FAX (559) 673-5569. 
 
1.0 Call to Order 


1.1  Flag Salute 
 
2.0 Consideration of Minutes 


2.1  Regular Meeting August 10, 2021 (Action) [Board] 
 
3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board] 
 
4.0 Information 


4.1 Public Comment 
[This time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the 
Board, but not listed on the agenda. Board members may 
listen to but not discuss matters not on the agenda. (G.C. 
54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items 
presented under public comment.  Speakers are limited 
to 3 minutes.] 


 
4.2 Letters and Communications 
 
4.3 Non-School Sources 


 
4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) 
           Executive Committee Meeting Report [Deniz] 


 
4.5  Madera County Foundation Board Report [Bustos] 


 
4.6  Member Report(s) [Member] 


 







 


 
 


5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 Cyber Security and Information Technology 
 [Presentation on Information Technology services] [Lingo/Rojas] 


 
6.0 Old Business 
 
7.0 Closed Session 
 
8.0 New Business 


8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
[Ratification of Temporary County Certificates  
issued previous month] (Action) [Protzman] 


 
8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 


[Equipment to be declared obsolete and removed  
from inventory] (Action) [DeWall] 


 
8.3 Consideration Annual Update of Handbook for 


Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases and 
Specialized Care 
[Annual updates for contact information] [Drake] 


 
8.4 Approval of 2020-2021 Budget Revisions 


 [Revisions made during closeout] (Action) [DeWall] 
 


8.5 Consideration Revision of Board Bylaws 
MCBE BB 9630 Expulsion Appeals  
[Review updates of policy and renumber] (Action) [Massetti] 


 
8.6 Consideration Acceptance of Expulsion Appeal Handbook 


[Expulsion process and procedures] (Action) [Marsh] 
 


5:15 p.m. PUBLIC HEARING – INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
& SUPPLIES 2021-2022 


 
8.7 Consideration of Resolutions to Determine 


Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional 
Materials for Students Served in Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools Programs 


 [Annual certification regarding textbooks and  
 instructional materials] (Action) [Drake/Cogan] 







 


 
 


8.7.1  Resolution No. 2, 2021-2022 Availability of 
Instructional Materials (Special Education) 


8.7.2 Resolution No. 3, 2021-2022 Availability of 
Instructional Materials (Career Technical 
and Alternative Education) 


8.7.3 Adoption of Instructional Materials for 
Pupils in Grades 9-12 


 
8.8  Update on Trustee Area Adjustment 


[2020 Census data will require balancing of trustee areas] [Massetti] 
 
9.0 Other 


9.1 Possibility of Special Board Meeting September 
20, 2021, at 4:00 p.m. for Expulsion Appeal 


 
10.0  Adjournment 





		AGENDA

		1.0 Call to Order

		2.0 Consideration of Minutes

		3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board]

		4.0 Information

		5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff

		6.0 Old Business

		7.0 Closed Session

		8.0 New Business

		9.0 Other

		10.0 Adjournment





